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December 31, 2024

Board of Directors of Salem Area Mass Transit District
Citizens of Marion and Polk Counties

It is our pleasure to submit to you the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report of the
Salem Area Mass Transit District for the fiscal year that ended June 30, 2024. Oregon
Statutes require that the District publish, within six months of the close of each fiscal
year (FY), a complete set of financial statements presented in conformance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, and audited in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States by a firm of licensed
certified public accountants.

This report consists of management's representations concerning the finances of the
District. Consequently, responsibility for the accuracy of the data and the completeness
and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with management. To
provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management has
established an internal control structure designed to safeguard the District’s assets
against loss, theft, or misappropriation, and to ensure the reliability of financial records
for preparing financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP). The internal control structure has been designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are being met. The concept
of reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the cost of the control structure should not
exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the evaluation of cost and benefits
requires estimates and judgments by management. We believe that the District's internal
control structure adequately safeguards assets and provides reasonable assurance of
proper recording of financial transactions. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the
enclosed data is presented accurately, in all material respects, along with disclosures
necessary to provide the reader with a reasonable understanding of the District's
finances.

This report was prepared in accordance with the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) and includes:

e Anarrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements in
the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal
is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The
District's MD&A can be found following the independent auditor's report on the



basic financial statements, beginning on Page 5 of this report.

o Statement of Net Position, Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net
Position, Statement of Cash Flows and related notes for the District as a whole on
the full accrual basis.

e Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget to Actual
is presented as supplementary information.

REDW, LLC, a firm of licensed certified public accountants, audited the District's financial
statements. The goal of this independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that
the financial statements of the District for the FY that ended June 30, 2024, are free of
material misstatements. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor
concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an
unmodified opinion that the District's basic financial statements for the FY that ended June
30, 2024, are fairly presented in all material respects in conformity with GAAP. The
independent auditor's report is presented in the Financial Section of this report beginning
on Page 1.

In addition to meeting the requirements set forth above, the independent audit also was
designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies as provided for in the
Federal Single Audit Act and the Office of Management and Budget's (OMB) Super
Circular 2 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, the Uniform Guidance. These
standards require the independent government's internal controls to be established and
maintained effectively and the District to be in compliance with legal requirements, with
special emphasis on internal controls and compliance with legal requirements involving
the administration of federal awards. The results of the independent audit for the FY that
ended June 30, 2024, indicated no significant violations of applicable laws and
regulations. The independent auditor's reports, related specifically to the Single Audit
and OMB Super Circular 2 CFR Part 200, the Uniform Guidance, are contained in a
separate report.

il
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District Overview

Cherriots, officially known as the Salem Area Mass Transit District (SAMTD), provides
public transportation services to the Salem and Keizer communities, as well as many
communities throughout Oregon’s Mid-Willamette Valley. SAMTD was established in
1979, under the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes Chapter 267 that allowed for the
formation of transit districts as special taxing entities. Prior to that time, the Cherriots
fixed route bus system had been part of the City of Salem.

The District has a memorandum of understanding with Marion and Polk counties to
provide transit services within these two counties. SAMTD provides fixed route,
paratransit and regional services. District buses provide service over a 78-square mile
area in Salem-Keizer and the Mid-Willamette Valley. The combined population of Marion
and Polk counties is about 437,000.

The District’s mission is Creating Community Connections. We do this though a variety of
services throughout the region.

In addition to local fixed-route, the District operates Cherriots Regional, Cherriots Shop
and Ride, and Cherriots LIFT. Cherriots Regional routes provide express bus service to
help riders travel between cities in Marion and Polk counties. Moreover, Cherriots
provides an express commuter route to Wilsonville and also an express commuter route
to connect Keizer, Woodburn, and Wilsonville.

In FY 2024, annual Cherriots ridership among all services was approximately 3.5 million,
averaging more than 11,631 riders per weekday, 5,701 on Saturday, and 3,139 on Sunday.
The District maintains 68 active buses for fixed route service, Cherriots Local; 37 buses
for the paratransit service, Cherriots LIFT; and 14 buses for the Cherriots Regional

service.

Cherriots LIFT is a paratransit service provided to seniors and people with disabilities that
operates throughout the Salem-Keizer urban growth boundary. Riders must be certified
eligible to use the Cherriots LIFT service in advance of scheduling a trip.

Lastly, Cherriots Shop and Ride is a dial-a-ride service for seniors and people with
disabilities. It operates throughout the Salem-Keizer urban growth boundary. There is no
formal eligibility process to use the service.

il
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The District's Board of Directors sets policy, appropriates funds, adopts budgets and
reviews contracts. The current board members have all been governor-appointed.

Before July 1, 2019, board members were citizen-elected. With its range of different social
and ethnic backgrounds, the current Board of Directors is more diverse than any prior

configuration.

The District is authorized to levy taxes and charge fares to pay for operations. Forty
percent of general fund revenue comes from local property taxes. Sixteen percent of the
general fund are funds received from the state.

For financial planning and control, the District prepares and adopts an annual budget in
accordance with Oregon Revised Statutes Chapters 294.305 through 294.565. The legally
adopted budget is at the fund/division level for current expenditures, with separate
appropriations established for the division levels of General Manager, Deputy General
Manager, Finance, Technology and Program Management, Human Resources,
Operations, Communication, Unallocated - General Administration, and internal
transfers for each fund. Budgetary control is internally administered at a more restrictive
level. Budget-to-actual comparisons for each individual fund for which an appropriated
annual budget has been adopted are provided as other supplementary information in
this report.

Local Economy

The District is located within the Salem Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA). The Salem
MSA, as defined by the U.S. Census Bureau, is an area consisting of two counties in
western Oregon, Marion and Polk. The principal city is Salem, which has a population of
177,432 according to the 2023 U.S. Census estimate. In 2023, there were an estimated
436,597 living in the Salem MSA compared with a population of 433,551 in the 2020
census. Marion and Polk counties are located south of the Portland metropolitan area in
the center of the Willamette Valley. The District's boundaries are contiguous with the
urban growth boundaries and include the city of Salem and the city of Keizer. The District
also provides regional services to Marion and Polk counties and express commuter
services to Wilsonville in Clackamas County.

Salem is the capital of Oregon and the county seat for Marion County. Population
estimates from Portland State University’s Population Research Center rank Salem as the
second largest city. The Salem MSA had the second largest population in the state at July 1,
2024. The major industries in the Salem MSA are agribusiness, health care, technology,
government, and education.

v
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The average unemployment rate in the Salem MSA in 2024 was 3.9 percent.

The county(s) do provide a property tax abatement in which Salem Area Mass Transit
District participates to stimulate economic growth in the District. In FY 2024, the
abatement resulted in a .005% reduction in property tax revenues as compared to a
.008% reduction in property tax revenues in FY 2023. This abatement does not affect the
overall financial health for the the District.

Fixed Route Transportation

Approximately 8.3 million passenger miles were traveled annually, with total ridership of
3,228,778 for FY 2024. This total ridership represents an increase of 16.9 percent from FY
2023. For FY 2024, the operating costs per revenue mile for the fixed route service
amounted to $15.80 compared to a cost of $15.68 for FY 2023 (a 1 percent increase), while
the average cost per ride decreased from $13.53 in FY 2023 to $12.36 for FY 2024 (a 9
percent decrease). The decrease in the cost per ride is driven by the significant increase in
ridership.

Alternative Transportation

Ridership in the demand response programs increased during FY 2024. The total rides
provided in FY 2024 were 104,912 compared to 84,798 rides provided in FY 2023. The
average cost of providing demand response rides in FY 2024 was $57.00 compared with
$53.10 for FY 2023. This increase in cost per ride is the result of increased expenses to
operate the programs and offset partially by increased ridership for FY2024 versus
FY2023.

A small portion of the cost of providing these alternative transportation services is
typically covered with fare revenue. There was $148,237 collected in fares for FY24, as
compared to $198,854 collected for fares in FY 2023.

Cherriots has undertaken several transformative initiatives aimed at modernizing its

services, enhancing customer experience, and addressing community needs. Below is an
updated overview of their major initiatives and future plans:

Major Initiatives
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Modernization Projects
Cherriots continues to modernize its infrastructure with several key projects:
e Electronic Fare Payment System: The UMO system allows riders to pay via mobile
phones or fare cards.
e Intelligent Transportation System (ITS): Enhancements are underway to improve
operational efficiency and rider experience.
e Transit Signal Prioritization: This system aims to reduce delays for buses at traffic
signals.
e South Salem Transit Center: Ongoing development includes environmental reviews
and land acquisition for this critical mobility hub.
e Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP): Implementation of the new HR/Finance

software streamlines operations.

Heritage and History in Transit Initiative

The "Heritage and History in Transit" initiative, spearheaded by the Cherriots Board of
Directors, aims to celebrate the rich tapestry of cultures within the Salem-Keizer
community. The unifying theme for this initiative is "Connecting Cultures, Creating
Community," which encapsulates the goal of fostering understanding and appreciation
among diverse groups.

e Recognition of three Heritage and History Months annually
e Custom-designed bus wraps featuring the theme "Connecting Cultures, Creating

Community"
e Each wrapped bus will operate for 4-6 months, serving as a rolling tribute to

diverse cultural experiences

By participating in this initiative, Cherriots joins other transit agencies, including
TriMet, which has been celebrating heritage months with custom-designed vehicle
wraps by local artists. These programs not only beautify public transit but also serve
as mobile educational tools, fostering a sense of community and inclusivity among
riders.

The "Heritage and History in Transit" initiative by Cherriots is a testament to the
power of public transportation in bringing people together and celebrating the
diverse cultures that make up the fabric of our communities.

vi
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Zero-Emission Buses

Cherriots received its first fleet of 10 battery-electric buses in 2023 and began creating
the district’s first zero-emission corridor on Route 11 (Lancaster Drive). This initiative
represents a major step toward sustainability by reducing greenhouse gas emissions and
noise pollution. The electric buses were funded through federal grants and local
investments, with plans for an additional 10 buses in late 2025. These buses are
expected to significantly lower energy consumption while serving historically
underserved communities along the route.

Route 22 Kuebler Link Launch
The Salem Area Mass Transit District began operating its new Kuebler Link bus route,

connecting south Lancaster Drive and south Commercial Street. By connecting these two
key arteries, Cherriots is not only enhancing mobility but also fostering greater economic
activity and social interaction within the community it serves. Route 22 provides service
every 20 minutes during weekday peak service times. It operates seven days a week,
serving key destinations along Kuebler Boulevard. Up to four buses serve Route 22. At 25
feet in length, these vehicles are smaller than the standard 35 or 40-foot-bus. The smaller
size allows access to areas that a typical bus could not. The introduction of the Kuebler
Link is expected to have a significant positive impact on the community, reducing traffic
congestion, lowering carbon emissions, and providing a cost-effective alternative to car
travel.

Youth Ride Free Program

One of the most impactful initiatives has been the Youth Ride Free program for residents
aged 0 to 18. This community-sponsored program led to an 89% increase in youth
ridership, with over 747,000 youth rides provided in FY23 and exceeded 979,000 rides in
FY24. The program has fostered independence among young residents, improved access
to education and employment opportunities, and promoted environmental benefits by
reducing car emissions. It also nurtures a new generation of environmentally conscious
transit users.

Future Strategic Initiatives
The upcoming fiscal year will see the implementation of several key projects and
initiatives aimed at enhancing our public transit system's efficiency, sustainability, and

security. These include:

vii
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1. Environmental Review and Land Acquisition

We anticipate finalizing the environmental review process and completing land
acquisition for the South Salem Transit Center, marking a significant step towards
expanding our service infrastructure.

2. Sustainable Transportation
September will herald the introduction of battery-electric bus service on Route 11,
designated as the Electric Corridor. This initiative underscores our commitment to
reducing carbon emissions and promoting eco-friendly public transportation options.

3. Technological Advancements
The completion of the Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) project is on track, which
will significantly improve our ability to manage and optimize transit operations.

4. Enhanced Security Measures
We will finalize the implementation of physical security enhancements at Del Webb, KTC,
and DTC facilities, ensuring a safer environment for both passengers and staff.

5. Operational Optimization
A Comprehensive Operations Analysis will be conducted to identify areas for
improvement and streamline our services.

6. Environmental Stewardship

The implementation of our Climate Action Plan will commence, demonstrating our
proactive approach to addressing environmental challenges and promoting sustainable
practices within our transit system.

These strategic initiatives reflect our ongoing dedication to providing efficient, safe, and
environmentally responsible public transportation services to our community.

Long-Term Financial Planning

One of the District’s strategic priorities is to ensure organizational viability. One
important factor in this priority is financial viability. We work to ensure that we can

viii
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fiscally maintain our services long-term and that we continue to be able to fund our 10-
year capital improvement plan.

Acknowledgements
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GROVE, MUELLER & SWANK
redw

Advisors & CPAs
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Directors
Salem Area Mass Transit District
Salem, Oregon

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the enterprise and fiduciary funds of Salem Area Mass Transit
District (the “District”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the enterprise and fiduciary funds of the District as of June 30, 2024, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards (GAS),
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Other Matter — Auditor’s Report on the June 30, 2023 Financial Statements

The financial statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, were audited by Grove, Mueller & Swank,
P.C., whose shareholders, and professional staff joined REDW LLC as of November 30, 2023, and has
substantially ceased operations. Grove, Mueller & Swank, P.C. expressed an unmodified opinion on those
statements in their report dated February 29, 2024.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The District’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

475 Cottage Street NE, Suite 200, Salem, OR 97301 ¢ T: 503.581.7788 ¢ E: info@gms.cpa ¢ www.redw.com/gms



In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a
going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and GAS will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and GAS, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis (MD&A) and required supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management
and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.



Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The supplementary information section as listed in the table
of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. The supplementary information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the other supplementary information is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information Included in the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR)

Management is responsible for the other information included in the ACFR. The other information comprises
the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon. Our opinions on the financial statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express an
opinion or any form of assurance thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the
other information and the financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the
other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Reports on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 31, 2024
on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

Other Reporting Required by Oregon Minimum Standards

In accordance with Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, we have issued our
report dated December 31, 2024, on our consideration of the District’s compliance with certain provisions of
laws and regulations, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon
Administrative Rules. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and the
results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on compliance.
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Salem Area Mass Transit District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The management of Salem Area Mass Transit District (District) presents this narrative overview
and analysis to facilitate both a short-term and long-term analysis of the financial activities of the
District for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023. This Management’s Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A) is based on facts, decisions, and conditions that existed as of the date of the
independent auditor’s report.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The District’s financial statements consist of a statement of net position, a statement of revenues,
expenses and changes in net position, and a statement of cash flows. They have been prepared
using the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). Under this basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized in the period in which they are earned, and expenses are recognized in the period in
which they are incurred, regardless of the related cash flows.

Financial Highlights

The District's total assets increased in FY 2024 from $127.4 million to $137.3 million, due to an
increase of capital assets, mainly the purchase of 10 battery electric buses. The District's total
assets increased in FY 2023 from $109.3 million to $127.4 million, due to an increase in
unrestricted cash, federal grants receivable, and state grants receivable.

The District’s deferred outflows decreased in FY 2024 by approximately $.9 million and the
District’s deferred outflows decreased in FY 2023 by approximately $5.4 million. These changes
are due to actuarial assumption changes and other activities in the District’s retirement plans.

The District’s total liabilities decreased in FY 2024 by $2.7 million, due mostly to a decrease in
net pension liabilities of the District. The District’s total liabilities decreased in FY 2023 by $1.9
million, due mostly to a decrease in net pension liabilities of the District.

In FY 2024, the District’s total net position increased by $11.3 million. Restricted net position for
capital projects increased by $1.5 million and restricted net position for transportation programs
increased by $.6 million. Unrestricted net position decreased by approximately $4.1 million.

In FY 2023, the District’s total net position increased by $17.2 million. Restricted net position
for capital projects increased by $4.3 million and restricted net position for transportation
programs increased by $5.4 million. Unrestricted net position increased by approximately $2.7
million.

Net position investment in capital assets consists of land, land improvements, buildings, vehicles,
and office and shop equipment, net of accumulated depreciation.

Net position restricted for capital projects and net position restricted for transportation programs
represent amounts restricted for use for capital expenditures, and for transportation programs and
projects, respectively.



June 30,

2024 2023 2022

Assets

Current and restricted assets $ 71,799,555 $ 74,559,161 $ 61,147,609

Noncurrent assets 696,468 - -

Capital assets, net of depreciation 64,804,393 52,886,041 48,119,928
Total assets 137,300,416 127,445,202 109,267,537
Deferred outflows of resources 4,169,535 5,054,031 10,409,616
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 141,469,951 $ 132,499,233 $§ 119,677,153
Liabilities

Current liabilities $ 9,188,825 §$ 10,319,720 $ 8,916,341

Noncurrent liabilities 6,482,465 8,017,413 11,348,104
Total liabilities 15,671,290 18,337,133 20,264,445
Deferred inflows of resources 2,049,806 1,676,069 4,127,360
Net position

Investment in capital assets 64,804,393 52,886,041 48,119,928

Restricted for capital projects 9,980,233 8,471,874 4,130,496

Restricted for transportation programs 9,620,767 8,373,265 2,941,080

Restricted for pensions 696,468 - -

Unrestricted 38,646,994 42,754,851 40,093,844
Total net position 123,748,855 112,486,031 95,285,348
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and net position $ 141469951 $ 132,499,233 § 119,677,153

In FY 2024, operating revenue increased approximately $830 thousand from $3.7 million from
the prior year. This increase was due to increasing service levels. Non-operating revenues,
including capital contributions, decreased approximately $2.6 million from the prior year with a
decrease in federal funding offset partially by an increase in state funding and capital
contributions. Operating expenses increased by approximately $4.2 million from the prior year,
mainly due to an increase in personnel services and increased materials and services expenses
due to increased services levels.

In FY 2023, operating revenue increased approximately $511 thousand from $3.2 million from
the prior year. This increase was due to increasing service levels. Non-operating revenues,
including capital contributions, increased approximately $9.6 million from the prior year. This
increase is due to an increase in federal assistance and property taxes. Operating expenses
increased by approximately $6.8 million from the prior year, mainly due to an increase in
personnel services as a result of a new labor contract and increased materials and services
expenses due to increased services levels.



In FY 2024, the District’s total revenue decreased approximately $7.7 million, or 12.4 percent
during mainly due to no longer having additional COVID-19 resources. The District’s total
revenue increased approximately $7.8 million, or 14.3 percent, during FY 2023, primarily from
non-operating sources, such as federal assistance (up $5.8 million) for COVID-19 pandemic-
related costs, and earnings on investments, $1.1 million.

Year Ended June 30,
2024 2023 2022

Operating revenues

Passenger fares $ 2,634,822  $ 2,466,510 $ 2,015,718

Accessible services and Medicaid 1,360,308 765,427 465,018

Other revenues 525,855 460,271 700,695
Non-operating revenues

Property taxes 15,386,082 14,810,245 14,227,455

State assistance 23,470,230 18,166,795 18,411,572

Federal assistance 8,997,909 24,061,671 18,251,835

Other revenues 2,002,529 1,334,817 221,492
Total revenue 54,377,735 62,065,736 54,293,785
Operating expenses (52,642,689) (48,450,934) (41,606,235)
Changes in net position before

capital contributions 1,735,046 13,614,802 12,687,550
Capital contributions 9,527,778 3,585,881 1,222,623
Changes i net position 11,262,824 17,200,683 13,910,173
Beginning net position 112,486,031 95,285,348 81,375,175
Ending net position $ 123,748,855 $§ 112,486,031 $ 95,285,348




Capital Assets

The District’s investment in capital assets amounts to $64.8 million and $52.9 million net of
accumulated depreciation as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. This investment in capital
assets includes land, construction in progress, buildings, land improvements, revenue rolling
stock, and equipment. The total increase in the District’s investment in capital assets for FY 2024
was 22.5 percent. The total increase in the District’s investment in capital assets for FY 2023 was
9.9 percent.

Major capital projects during FY 2024 included the battery electric buses and associated
charging equipment. Construction in progress at the end of the year was approximately $18.9
million for various projects.

Major capital projects during FY 2023 included the Cherriots regional vehicles and other
equipment including charging stations and security equipment. Construction in progress at the
end of the year was approximately $9.7 million for various projects.

June 30, Increase/(decrease)
2024 2023 2022 2024-2023 2023-2022

Land $ 3,039566 $ 3,039,566 $ 3,039,566 $ - $ -
Construction in progress 18,941,802 9,722,333 8,077,725 9,219,469 1,644,608
Land improvements, net 6,651,927 3,531,427 3,693,577 3,120,500 (162,150)
Buildings, net 14,650,138 15,112,960 15,606,758 (462,822) (493,798)
Revenue rolling stock, net 16,607,323 17,488,711 15,815,692 (881,388) 1,673,019
Equipment, net 4,913,637 3,991,044 1,886,610 922,593 2,104,434

$ 64,804,393 $ 52,886,041 $§ 48,119,928 § 11918352 § 4,766,113

Additional information on the District’s capital assets can be found in note 5 on page 24 of this
report.

Economic Factors

The economy of the District and its major initiatives are discussed in detail in the accompanying
Transmittal Letter.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the District’s finances for those
with an interest in the District’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided
in this report, or requests for additional information should be addressed to:

Salem Area Mass Transit District
555 Court Street NE, Suite 5230
Salem, Oregon 97301-3980
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Salem Area Mass Transit District
Statements of Net Position
June 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2023
Assets
Current assets
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents $ 38,363,312 $ 40,688,487
Accounts receivable 221,310 482,367
Property taxes receivable 565,052 492,105
Prepaid items 1,439,043 1,199,553
Inventories 896,667 826,872
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 19,601,000 16,845,139
Federal grants receivable 7,351,448 9,276,298
State grants receivable 3,361,723 4,748,340
Total current assets 71,799,555 74,559,161
Capital assets
Land 3,039,566 3,039,566
Construction in progress 18,941,802 9,722,333
Land improvements (net of depreciation) 6,651,927 3,531,427
Buildings and improvements (net of depreciation) 14,650,138 15,112,960
Revenue rolling stock (net of depreciation) 16,607,323 17,488,711
Equipment (net of depreciation) 4,913,637 3,991,044
Total capital assets 64,804,393 52,886,041
Other noncurrent assets
Net pension asset 696,468 -
Total noncurrent assets 65,500,861 52,886,041
Total assets 137,300,416 127,445,202
Deferred outflows of resources
Related to pensions 3,400,846 4,374,614
Related to total OPEB liability 768,689 679,417
Total deferred outflows of resources 4,169,535 5,054,031
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 141,469,951 $ 132,499,233

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Salem Area Mass Transit District
Statements of Net Position (Continued)
June 30, 2024 and 2023

Liabilities

Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accounts payable from restricted assets
Payroll, withholdings and payroll taxes
Construction retainage
Due to other governments from restricted assets
Accrued vacation and sick leave - current portion
OPEB - current portion
Unearned revenue

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Net pension liability
Total OPEB liability, net of current portion
Accrued vacation and sick leave, net of current portion

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources

Related to pensions
Related to total OPEB liability

Total deferred inflows of resources

Net position
Investment in capital assets
Restricted for capital projects
Restricted for transportation programs
Restricted for pensions
Unrestricted

Total net position

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

2024 2023
606,049 627,126
1,104,347 1,094,692
1,152,097 1,183,469
113,773 118,816
54,929 338,701
960,363 808,423
238,783 220,009
4,958,484 5,928,484
9,188,825 10,319,720
1,791,052 3,267,764
3,731,051 3,941,225
960,362 808,424
6,482,465 8,017,413
15,671,290 18,337,133
563,525 421,916
1,486,281 1,254,153
2,049,806 1,676,069
64,804,393 52,886,041
9,980,233 8,471,874
9,620,767 8,373,265
696,468 -
38,646,994 42,754,851
123,748,855 112,486,031
141,469,951 132,499,233
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Salem Area Mass Transit District

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

Operating revenues
Passenger fares

Accessible services and Medicaid
Other revenues

OPEB revenue

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses
Personnel services
Materials and services

Depreciation
OPEB expense

Total operating expenses
Operating loss

Non-operating revenues
Property taxes
State assistance
Federal assistance
Earnings on investments
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets

Total non-operating revenues
Change in net position before capital contributions

Capital contributions

Federal and state grants for capital acquisition
Changes in net position

Total net position - beginning of year

Total net position - end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

2024 2023
$ 2,634,822 2,466,510
1,360,308 765,427
477,311 460,271
48,544 -
4,520,985 3,692,208
32,330,794 30,593,046
17,229,248 15,033,329
3,082,647 2,780,383
- 44,176
52,642,689 48,450,934
(48,121,704) (44,758,726)
15,386,082 14,810,245
23,470,230 18,166,795
8,997,909 24,061,671
2,499,929 1,369,510
(497,400) (34,693)
49,856,750 58,373,528
1,735,046 13,614,802
9,527,778 3,585,881
11,262,824 17,200,683
112,486,031 95,285,348
$ 123,748,855 112,486,031
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Salem Area Mass Transit District
Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from customers
Payments to employees for services
Cash paid to suppliers for good and services

Net cash used for operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Receipts from property taxes
Receipts from state assistance
Receipts from federal assistance

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Receipts from capital grants
Acquisition and construction of capital assets

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used for operating activities

Operating loss

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used for operating activities:

Depreciation

Change in net pension liability/asset and related deferrals
Change in OPEB obligation and related deferrals
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable

(Increase) decrease in prepaid items

(Increase) decrease in inventories

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable from restricted assets
Increase (decrease) in payroll, withholdings and payroll taxes

Increase (decrease) in accrued vacation and sick leave
Increase (decrease) in unearned revenue

Net cash used for operating activities

2024 2023
3,812,042 $ 3,375,007
(33,164,635) (31,516,944)
(17,549,955) (14,855,920)
(46,902,548) (42,997,857)
15,313,135 14,789,597
24,573,075 16,694,395
11,594,009 24,663,389
51,480,219 56,147,381
8,856,528 3,708,906
(15,503,442) (7,576,146)
(6,646,914) (3,867,240)
2,499,929 1,369,510
430,686 10,651,794
57,533,626 46,881,832
57964312 $ 57,533,626
(48,121,704)  $  (44,758,726)
3,082,647 2,780,383
(1,057,803) 3,139,147
(48,544) (4,330,438)
261,057 (317,201)
(239,490) (216,678)
(69,795) 129,485
(21,077) (181,787)
9,655 446,389
(31,372) 209,443
303,878 102,126
(970,000) -
(46,902,548)  $  (42,997,857)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Salem Area Mass Transit District
Statements of Fiduciary Net Position
June 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2023
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,266,756 $ 2,155,289
Investments
Fixed Income 22,849,153 17,911,523
Stocks 24,134,232 21,338,909
Total investments 46,983,385 39,250,432
Total assets 48,250,141 41,405,721
Fiduciary net position - Restricted $ 48,250,141 $ 41,405,721

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Salem Area Mass Transit District
Statements of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

Additions
ICMA Transfers
Employer contributions

Total contributions

Net increase in fair value of investments

Investment expense

Net investment income
Total additions

Deductions

Service benefits
Net increase in fiduciary net position
Fiduciary net position - Restricted - beginning of year

Fiduciary net position - Restricted - end of year

2024 2023
$ 831,209 $ 53,137
4,056,297 3,805,356
4,887,506 3,858,493
4,774,652 2,765,231
(234,018) (213,007)
4,540,634 2,552,224
9,428,140 6,410,717
2,583,720 2,466,685
6,844,420 3,944,032
41,405,721 37,461,689
$ 48,250,141 $ 41,405,721

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Salem Area Mass Transit District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Salem Area Mass Transit District (District) have been
prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as applied
to government units in the United States of America. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental
accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the District’s
accounting policies are described below.

A. Financial Reporting Entity

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
reporting entity include the primary government, all organizations for which the primary
government is financially accountable and other organizations that, by the nature and
significance of their relationship with the primary government, would cause the financial
statements to be incomplete or misleading if excluded. Based on these criteria, the District
is considered a primary government and does not have any component unit relationships.
Conversely, the District is not considered a component unit of any primary government.

B. Organization and Operation

The District was organized under the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) Chapter
267 to provide mass transit services to the Salem, Marion and Polk County area. Formation
of the District was effective in 1979. Under ORS 267, the District is authorized to levy
taxes and charge fares to pay for the operations of the District. The District is also
authorized to issue general obligation bonds and revenue bonds.

The District is governed by an appointed seven-member Board of Directors. Board
members represent and must live in certain geographical sub-districts. The Board of
Directors sets District policy, levies taxes, appropriates funds, adopts budgets, and
performs other duties required by state and federal law. The District also has fiduciary
responsibility for two pension plan trust funds: The Non-Bargaining defined benefit plan
covering nonunion employees, and the Bargaining defined benefit plan covering union
employees. The investment, pension funding and benefit payment activity are reported in
these two District fiduciary pension trust funds.

C. Basis of Accounting and Revenue Recognition

The District is reported as a single proprietary unit. Proprietary reporting is used to account
for operations and activities that are similar to those found in the private sector.

The financial statements have been prepared using the economic resources measurement
focus and accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Under this basis, revenues are recognized in the
period in which they are earned, and expenses are recognized in the period in which they
are incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

16



Salem Area Mass Transit District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

Operating revenues consist primarily of passenger fares and funds received for special
transportation. Operating expenses include the costs of operating the District, including
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Revenues are recognized when they are earned and available to meet current obligations.
Cash received before services are rendered is considered unearned. Expenses are
recognized when they are incurred. The District applies a flow of economic resources
measurement focus, whereby all assets and liabilities associated with the operation of the
District are included on the Statement of Net Position.

Ad valorem property taxes are levied and become a lien on all taxable property as of July 1.
Property taxes are payable on November 15. Collection dates are November 15, February
15, and May 15. Discounts are allowed if the amount due is received by November 15.
Taxes unpaid and outstanding on May 16 are considered delinquent.

Uncollected taxes are deemed to be substantially collectible or recoverable through liens;
therefore, no allowance for uncollectible taxes has been established.

Federal and state grant contributions for capital acquisitions are recorded as capital
contributions and are included in net income when earned. Non-capital federal and state
grant revenue are recorded as non-operating revenue when earned.

D. Restricted Assets

Restricted assets consist of assets restricted for federal capital grant programs and State of
Oregon special transportation programs. When both restricted and unrestricted resources
are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use restricted resources first and then
unrestricted resources as they are needed.

E. Cash and Investments

ORS 294.035 authorizes the District to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and
agencies, time certificates of deposit, bankers’ acceptances, repurchase agreements, certain
types of corporate bonds, and the State of Oregon Local Government Investment Pool.
Such investments are stated at cost. The investments are increased by accretion of
discounts and reduced by amortization of premiums, which are computed by the straight-
line method and approximates fair market value.

Fair value is defined as the amount at which an investment could be exchanged between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the District considers cash and equivalents to
include all highly liquid debt instruments with an original maturity of three months or less.
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Salem Area Mass Transit District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

F. Inventories

Inventories of fuel, lubricants, parts, and supplies are valued at cost, which approximates
market, using the average cost method.

G. Prepaid Items

Payments to vendors reflecting costs applicable to future accounting periods are recorded
as prepaid items.

H. Capital Assets

Capital assets are stated at cost, except for donated capital assets, which are stated at the
acquisition value rather than fair market value on the date of donation. Expenditures for
additions and improvements with a value in excess of $5,000 and a useful life of more than
one year are capitalized. Expenditures for maintenance, repairs, and minor improvements
are charged to operations as incurred. Upon disposal of capital assets, the accounts are
relieved of the related costs and accumulated depreciation, and the resulting gains or losses
are reflected in the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position.

Capital assets, excluding land and construction in progress, are depreciated using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Depreciation is an
accounting process to allocate the cost of capital assets to expense in a systematic and
rational manner to those periods expected to benefit from the use of capital assets.
Depreciation is not intended to represent an estimate in the decline of fair market value, nor
are capital assets net of accumulated depreciation, intended to represent an estimate of the
current condition, of the assets or the maintenance requirements needed to maintain the
assets at their current level of condition.

Asset Years
Buildings, Shelters, Stations 10-50
Revenue Rolling Stock 5-12
Equipment 3—-10

Monthly depreciation is taken in the year the assets are acquired or retired. Gains or losses
from sales or retirements of capital assets are included in operations of the current period.

I. Vacation and Sick Pay
Vacation pay is vested when earned. Employees earn annual leave based on length of

service to the District. Unpaid vested vacation is shown as vested compensated absences on
the Statement of Net Position and recorded as an expense when earned.
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Salem Area Mass Transit District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

Sick pay is accrued on a bi-weekly basis. Payouts are either 50 percent or 20 percent of the
balance depending on the accrued hours and length of service. Sick pay is recorded as a
liability on the statement of net position and an expense as accrued

J. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

K. Net Position

Net position comprises the various net earnings from operations, non-operating revenues,
expenses and contributions of capital. Net position is classified in the following three
categories.

Investment in capital assets — consists of all capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by outstanding debt that is attributable to the acquisition,
construction and improvement of those assets, if any.

Restricted — consists of external constraints placed on net position use by creditors,
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or constraints imposed
by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted — consists of all other net position that is not included in the other categories
previously mentioned.

L. Pensions

The District reports its pension obligations as a Net Pension Asset/Liability on the
Statement of Net Position for participating employees. Changes in net pension
asset/liability are immediately recognized as pension expense on the statement of revenue,
expenses, and changes in net position, or reported as deferred inflows/outflows of resources
depending on the nature of the change.

M. Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net assets that applies to a
future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until then.
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Salem Area Mass Transit District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net assets that applies to a future
period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until then.

(2) Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

For budgeting purposes, the District consists of a General Fund, Capital Projects Fund, and
Transportation Programs Fund. This is in conformity with Oregon Budget Law. Budgetary
basis revenues and expenditures are recognized on the modified accrual basis. The treatment
of capital expenditures is the principal difference between the budgetary basis and the accrual
basis. Capital expenditures on a budgetary basis are recorded as expenditures.

Financial operations of the District are accounted for in the following budgetary funds:
General Fund

The fund accounts for all financial resources and expenditures related to the District’s
general operations, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The principal
revenue sources are property taxes, state payroll assessments, passenger fares and federal
operating assistance.

Capital Projects Fund

This fund accounts for major capital acquisitions and projects. The principal revenue
sources are capital grants from the Federal Transit Administration and transfers from the
General Fund.

Transportation Programs Fund

This fund accounts for expenditures related to transportation service to special public
groups. The fund’s principal sources of revenue are Federal grants and reimbursements,
State special transportation formula grants and transfers from the General Fund.

The General Manager submits a proposed operating and capital budget to the Budget
Committee a sufficient length of time in advance to allow adoption of the budget prior to July
1. The operating and capital budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of
financing them. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.

The District legally adopts its annual budget prior to July 1 through passage of a resolution.
The resolution authorizes appropriations by fund and at broad classification levels for the
divisions in each fund. Expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations at these control
levels. Appropriations that have not been spent at year-end expire.
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(3) Cash and Cash Equivalents

The District maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds,
except for restricted cash and investments. At June 30, 2024 and 2023 the carrying value of
cash and cash equivalents and fair value are approximately equal. Cash and cash equivalents

included in cash and cash equivalents consisted of the following as of June 30:

2024 2023

Cash

Cash on hand $ 3,466 3,466

Deposits with financial institutions 10,867,062 7,901,264
Investments

Local government investment pool 47,093,784 49,628,896

Total cash and cash equivalents $ 57,964,312 57,533,626
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents $ 38,363,312 40,688,487
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 19,601,000 16,845,139

Total cash and cash equivalents $ 57,964,312 57,533,626

A. Deposits

As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the book balance of the District’s bank deposits (checking
accounts) was $10,867,062 and $7,901,264 and the bank balance was $11,615,191 and
$8,627,599 respectively. The difference is due to transactions in process.

B. Custodial Risk — Deposits

This is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District’s deposits may not be
returned. Effective July 1, 2008, the State of Oregon formed the Oregon Public Funds
Collateralization Program under ORS 295. The collateralization program creates a
statewide pool of qualified bank depositories for local governments, providing
collateralization for bank balances that exceed the $250,000 limit of federal depository
insurance, and eliminating the need for certificates of participation. As of June 30, 2024
and 2023, $11,115,191 and $8,127,599 of the District’s bank balances were exposed to
custodial credit risk as part of the Public Funds Collateralization Program.
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C. Investments

The State Treasurer of the State of Oregon maintains the Oregon Short term Fund, of which
the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) is part. Participation by local governments
is voluntary. The State of Oregon investment policies are governed by statute and the
Oregon Investment Council. In accordance with Oregon Statutes, the investment funds are
invested as a prudent investor would do, exercising reasonable care, skill and caution. The
Oregon Short Term Fund is the LGIP for local governments and was established by the
State Treasurer. It was created to meet the financial and administrative responsibilities of
federal arbitrage regulations.

At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the fair value of the District’s position in the LGIP was
approximately equal to the value of the pool shares. The investment in the Oregon Short
term Fund is not subject to risk evaluation. Separate financial statements for the Oregon
Short term Fund are available from the Oregon State Treasurer.

D. Interest Rate Risk - Investments

In accordance with its investment policy, the District manages its exposure to declines in
fair value of its investments by limiting the maximum maturity of its investments to one
year or less.

E. Custodial Risk - Investments

For an investment, there is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the counterparty, the
District will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateralized securities
that are in the possession of an outside party. Currently the District’s investments are
limited to the LGIP.

F. Credit Risk - Investments

The LGIP is administered by the Oregon State Treasury with the advice of other state
agencies and is not registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission. The
LGIP is an open-ended, no-load, diversified portfolio offered to any agency, political
subdivision, or public corporation of the state that by law is made the custodian of, or has
control of any fund. The LGIP is commingled with the State's short-term funds. In seeking
to best serve local governments of Oregon, the Oregon Legislature established the Oregon
Short-term Fund Board, which has established diversification percentages and specifies the
types and maturities of the investments. The purpose of the Board is to advise the Oregon
State Treasury in the management and investment of the LGIP. These investments within
the LGIP must be invested and managed as a prudent investor would, exercising reasonable
care, skill and caution. Professional standards indicate that the investments in external
investment pools are not subject to custodial risk because they are not evidenced by
securities that exist in physical or book entry form. Nevertheless, management does not
believe that there is any substantial custodial risk related to investments in the LGIP. The
LGIP is not rated for credit risk.
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(4) Restricted Net Position

Net Position is restricted for capital projects and transportation programs.

2024

Restricted for capital projects
Cash and cash equivalents
Federal grants receivable
State grants receivable

Total restricted for capital projects

Restricted for transportation programs
Cash and cash equivalents
Federal grants receivable
State grants receivable

Total restricted for transportation programs

2023

Restricted for capital projects
Cash and cash equivalents
Federal grants receivable
State grants receivable

Total restricted for capital projects

Restricted for transportation programs
Cash and cash equivalents
Federal grants receivable
State grants receivable

Total restricted for transportation programs

Total Less Current
Restricted Liabilities Restricted
Assets Payable (Liabilities)
$ 6,974930 $ (500,271) $ 6,474,659
2,980,067 - 2,980,067
525,507 - 525,507
10,480,504 (500,271) 9,980,233
8,995,065 (699,304) 8,295,761
929,414 - 929,414
395,592 - 395,592
10,320,071 (699,304) 9,620,767
$ 20,800,575 $ (1,199,575) $ 19,601,000
$ 4,815,040 $ (539,697) $ 4,275,343
3,651,317 - 3,651,317
545,214 - 545,214
9,011,571 (539,697) 8,471,874
6,452,114 (960,156) 5,491,958
1,204,535 - 1,204,535
1,676,772 - 1,676,772
9,333,421 (960,156) 8,373,265
$ 18,344992 $§ (1,499,853) $ 16,845,139
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(5) Capital Assets

The changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2024 are summarized below:

Capital assets, non-depreciable:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets, non-depreciable

Capital assets, depreciable:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Revenue rolling stock
Equipment
Total capital assets, depreciable

Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements
Land improvements
Revenue rolling stock
Equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

Net depreciable capital assets

Net capital assets

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Adjustments Balance
$ 3,039,566 $ -8 -3 - 8 3,039,566
9,722,333 11,623,100 - (2,403,631) 18,941,802
12,761,899 11,623,100 - (2,403,631) 21,981,368
4,858,162 1,860,419 - 1,445,188 8,163,769
24,500,117 100,754 (35,775) - 24,565,096
37,004,432 880,905 (680,115) - 37,205,222
9,592,279 1,033,221 (338,451) 461,043 10,748,092
75,954,990 3,875,299 (1,054,341) 1,906,231 80,682,179
(9,387,157) (563,576) 35,775 - (9,914,958)
(1,326,735) (185,107) - - (1,511,842)
(19,515,721) (1,762,293) 680,115 - (20,597,899)
(5,601,235) (571,671) 338,451 - (5,834,455)
(35,830,848) (3,082,647) 1,054,341 - (37,859,154)
40,124,142 792,652 - 1,906,231 42,823,025
$ 52,886,041 $ 12,415,752  $ - S (497,400) § 64,804,393

The changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2023 are summarized below:

Capital assets, non-depreciable:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets, non-depreciable

Capital assets, depreciable:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Revenue rolling stock
Equipment
Total capital assets, depreciable

Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements
Land improvements
Revenue rolling stock
Equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

Net depreciable capital assets

Net capital assets

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Adjustments Balance
$ 3,039,566 $ - 8 -3 - 8 3,039,566
8,077,725 2,141,707 - (497,099) 9,722,333
11,117,291 2,141,707 - (497,099) 12,761,899
4,858,162 - - - 4,858,162
24,435,512 64,605 - - 24,500,117
36,731,794 2,930,431 (3,154,892) 497,099 37,004,432
7,191,657 2,444,444 (43,822) - 9,592,279
73,217,125 5,439,480 (3,198,714) 497,099 75,954,990
(8,828,754) (558,403) - - (9,387,157)
(1,164,585) (162,150) - - (1,326,735)
(20,916,102) (1,754,514) 3,154,895 - (19,515,721)
(5,305,047) (305,318) 9,130 - (5,601,235)
(36,214,488) (2,780,385) 3,164,025 - (35,830,848)
37,002,637 2,659,095 (34,689) 497,099 40,124,142
$ 48,119,928 § 4,800,802 $ (34,689) $ - § 52,886,041
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The federal government retains a reversionary interest in property and equipment to the
extent of capital grants provided for their purchase. Upon disposal of property and
equipment, a prorated share of proceeds in excess of $5,000, if any, is returned to the federal
governments.

(6) Employee Retirement Plans

The District provides retirement benefits to its employees through two defined benefit plans,
a defined contribution plan and a deferred compensation plan.

The District’s two pension plans are presented in the aggregate on the Statement of Net
Position. The amounts on the financial statements relate to the plans as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2024

Non-Bargaining Total Pension on

Plan Bargaining Plan Financials
Net pension asset $ - $ 696,468 $ 696,468
Net pension liability 1,791,052 - 1,791,052
Deferred outflows of resources 2,887,304 513,542 3,400,846
Deferred inflows of resources 34,671 528,854 563,525
Pension expense/(income) 1,802,654 2,027,049 3,829,703

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

Non-Bargaining Total Pension on

Plan Bargaining Plan Financials
Net pension liability $ 130,984 S 3,136,780 $ 3,267,764
Deferred outflows of resources 1,573,706 2,800,908 4,374,614
Deferred inflows of resources 97,146 324,770 421,916
Pension expense/(income) 1,101,521 2,834,025 3,935,546

A. Defined Benefit Plans
The District contributes to two single-employer defined benefit pension plans. The Salem
Area Mass Transit—-Non-bargaining plan (Non-bargaining) covers all nonunion employees.
The Salem Area Mass Transit-Bargaining plan (Bargaining) covers all union employees.

Each plan’s assets are held in trust, independent of the District, and solely for the purpose
of paying each plan’s benefits and administrative expenses. The assets are invested in a
variety of stocks, bonds, and other securities. Neither plan includes in its assets, any
District securities or securities of any related parties. No loans have been granted to the
District from plan funds.
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Plan Description

In a defined benefit plan, benefits are determined using benefit formulas which take into
account actuarial information. The plans were effective January 1, 2002 and are
administered by Pioneer Trust. No separate financial statements are available for these
plans. The District’s Board of Directors holds the authority for establishing and amending
plan benefits and funding policies for both defined benefit plans. The non-bargaining plan
closed to new entrants effective March 1, 2021 with certain exceptions for subsequent hires
agreed to by the District. The plan change will cause the number of active employees
covered by the Plan to gradually decline over time. The actuarial roll-forward of liabilities
from the valuation date to the measurement date as prescribed by GASB reflects the
projected decline in active membership.

Benefits Provided

The defined benefit plans provide pension benefits to eligible full-time bargaining and non-
bargaining employees. Regular career status employees who have successfully completed
the probationary period of six months or 1,000 hours of service, whichever is later, are
eligible to participate.

The District makes all contributions to the plan. The District’s contributions for each
employee (and investment earnings allocated to the employee’s account) are fully vested
after five years of service. District contributions for, and investment earnings forfeited by,
employees who leave employment before five years of service, are used to reduce the
District’s contribution requirements.

The benefit payable at a participant’s normal retirement date will be equal to the excess of
1.64 percent times the participant's final average salary times the participant’s benefit
credits for the non-bargaining employees or 1.64 percent for the bargaining unit employees
over the amount which is the actuarial equivalent of the participant’s account balance in the
plan as of termination of employment.

Non-Bargaining Plan

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms
The following employees were covered by the benefit terms as of the most recent actuarial

valuation:
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 69
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 6
Active employees 56
131
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Contributions

The District is in the process of establishing a formal funding policy with the Board of
Directors. The Board of Directors has the authority to establish or amend such policies.
Currently, the District’s contribution rates are actuarially determined and approved and
implemented by executive staff. Contributions to the plan are made quarterly according to
an actuarially determined rate recommended by an independent actuary. This rate is
intended to finance the cost of current benefits earned, plus an amount to finance the
unfunded accrued liability. This rate, expressed as a percentage of covered payroll was,
15.89 percent and 19.17 percent for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

The District makes additional level dollar contribution to further reduce the unfunded
accrued liability. For the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, that amount was $606,899
and $700,733 respectively.

Net Pension Liability

The District’s net pension liability for the non-bargaining plan at June 30, 2024, was
measured as of that date, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2023.

The District’s net pension liability for the non-bargaining plan at June 30, 2023 was
measured as of that date, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2021.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions
The total pension liability in the July 1, 2023, actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation rate: 2.75%
Salary increases: 4.25% for first 5 years of service; 3.25%
thereafter

Investment rate of return: 5.50%
Mortality: RP-2014 tables, generationally projected using
Scale MP-2019

The non-bargaining pension plan does not provide for automatic, post-retirement benefit
increases. No ad hoc increases have been adopted.
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The best-estimate range for the long-term expected rate of return is determined by adding
expected inflation to expected long-term real returns and reflecting expected volatility and
correlation. The capital market assumptions are per Milliman’s investment consulting
practice as of January 1, 2023:

Long-Term Expected

Target Arithmetic Real Rate

Asset Class Allocation of Return

Cash 2.70% 0.76%
Core Fixed Income 37.80% 2.21%
Non-US Fixed Income 9.50% 0.51%
Large Cap US Equities 18.00% 5.38%
Mid Cap US Equities 6.00% 5.95%
Small Cap US Equities 4.00% 6.94%
Developed Foreign Equities 16.20% 6.92%
Emerging Market Equities 2.80% 9.59%
Small Cap Foreign Equities 3.00% 9.78%

100.00%
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 5.50%

Rate of Return

For the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, the annual money-weighted rate
of return on pension plan investments, net of pension plan investment expense, was 10.50
percent and 6.62 percent. The money-weighted return expresses investment performance,
net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested.

Discount Rate

The discount rate is used to measure the total pension liability. The discount rate was 5.50
percent for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that employer contributions will be made at rates
equal to the current contribution rate. The actuarially determined contribution rate is based
on a closed amortization period, which means that payment of the actuarially determined
contribution each year will bring the plan to a 100% funded position by the end of the
amortization period. Plan assets are assumed to earn the assumed rate of return and there
are no future changes in the plan provisions or actuarial methods and assumptions. Based
on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to make all projected future benefit payments to current active and inactive
employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments
was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability.
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Changes in Net Pension Liability

2024 2023

Total pension liability

Service cost $ 124,092 $ 137,037

Interest on total pension liability 578,925 595,450

Effect of economic/demographic gains or losses 3,471,888 (12,013)

Effect of assumption changes or inputs 182,877 -

Benefit payments (1,030,518) (986,038)
Net change in total pension liability 3,327,264 (265,564)
Total pension liability, beginning 10,910,181 11,175,745
Total pension liability, ending 14,237,445 10,910,181
Plan fiduciary net position

Benefit payments (1,030,518) (986,038)

Employer contributions 877,535 934,764

ICMA transfers 641,123 -

Net investment income 1,179,056 674,046
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 1,667,196 622,772
Plan fiduciary net position, beginning 10,779,197 10,156,425
Plan fiduciary net position, ending 12,446,393 10,779,197
Net pension liability (asset), ending $ 1,791,052 $ 130,984
Plan fiduciary net position as a percent of total
pension liability (asset) 87% 99%
Covered payroll 5,523,185 4,875,644
Net pension liability as a percent of covered payroll 32% 3%

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability of the District, calculated using a discount
rate of 5.50 percent for FY2024 and FY2023, as well as what the District’s net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate of one percentage point lower
or one percentage point higher that the rate used:

Net Pension Liability (Asset)

2024 2023
1% decrease (4.50%) $ 4,134,027 $ 2,183,767
Current discount rate (5.50%) 1,791,052 130,984
1% increase (6.50%) (109,116) (1,443,370)
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Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position can be obtained by
writing to: Salem Area Mass Transit District, 555 Court St NE Suite 5230, Salem, OR
97301-3980.

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

For the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the District recognized pension expense of
$1,802,654 and $1,101,521 respectively. The District reported deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources
at June 30, 2024

Deferred Deferred

Inflows of Outflows of

Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience  $ (5,149) § 2,708,298
Changes of assumptions (29,522) 127,460
Net difference between projected and actual earnings - 51,546
Total $ (34,671) § 2,887,304

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2025 $ 1,410,232
2026 1,362,697
2027 194,296
2028 (114,592)

§ 2,852,633

Bargaining Plan

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

The following employees were covered by the benefit terms as of the most recent actuarial
valuation:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 120
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 38
Active employees 154

312
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Contributions

The District is in the process of establishing a formal funding policy with the Board of
Directors. The Board of Directors has the authority to establish or amend such policies.
Currently, the District’s contribution rates are actuarially determined and approved and
implemented by the executive staff. Contributions to the plan are made quarterly according
to an actuarially determined rate recommended by an independent actuary. This rate is
intended to finance the cost of current benefits earned, plus an amount to finance the
unfunded accrued liability. This rate, expressed as a percentage of covered payroll was,
30.51 percent and 29.94 percent for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Net Pension Liability

The District’s net pension liability for the bargaining plan at June 30, 2024, was measured
as of that date, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2023.

The District’s net pension liability for the bargaining plan at June 30, 2023, was measured
as of that date, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2021.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions
The total pension liability in the July 1, 2023, actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation rate: 2.75%

Salary increases: 4.25% for first 5 years of service; 3.25%
thereafter

Investment rate of return: 5.50%

Mortality: RP-2014 tables, generationally projected using

Scale MP-2019

There have been no significant changes in plan provisions or covered population between
the valuation date and fiscal year end.

The bargaining pension plan does not provide for automatic, post-retirement benefit
increases. No ad hoc increases have ever been adopted.

The best-estimate range for the long-term expected rate of return is determined by adding
expected inflation to expected long-term real returns and reflecting expected volatility and
correlation. The capital market assumptions are per Milliman’s investment consulting
practice as of January 1, 2023:
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Long-Term

Target Expected Arithmetic
Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return
Cash 2.70% 0.76%
Core Fixed Income 37.80% 2.21%
Non-US Fixed Income 9.50% 0.51%
Large Cap US Equities 18.00% 5.38%
Mid Cap US Equities 6.00% 5.95%
Small Cap US Equities 4.00% 6.94%
Developed Foreign Equities 16.20% 6.92%
Emerging Market Equities 2.80% 9.59%
Small Cap Foreign Equities 3.00% 9.78%

100.00%

Rate of Return

For the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, the annual money-weighted rate
of return on pension plan investments, net of pension plan investment expense, was 10.58
percent and 6.67 percent. The money-weighted return expresses investment performance,
net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested.

Discount Rate

The discount rate is used to measure the total pension liability. The discount rate was 5.50
percent for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that employer contributions will be made at rates
equal to the current contribution rate. The actuarially determined contribution rate is based
on a closed amortization period, which means that payment of the actuarially determined
contribution each year will bring the plan to a 100% funded position by the end of the
amortization period. Plan assets are assumed to earn the assumed rate of return and there
are no future changes in the plan provisions or actuarial methods and assumptions. Based
on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to make all projected future benefit payments to current active and inactive
employees.

Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied
to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
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Changes in Net Pension Liability

2024 2023

Total pension liability

Service cost $ 1,362,679 $ 1,291,639

Interest on total pension liability 1,889,788 1,799,283

Effect of economic/demographic gains or losses (383,928) -

Effect of assumption changes or mputs 28,639 -

Benefit payments (1,553,203) (1,480,647)
Net change in total pension hability 1,343,975 1,610,275
Total pension liability, beginning 33,763,305 32,153,030
Total pension lability, ending 35,107,280 33,763,305
Plan fiduciary net position

Benefit payments (1,553,203) (1,480,647)

Employer contributions 3,178,762 2,870,592

ICMA transfers 190,086 53,137

Net investment income 3,361,578 1,878,178
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 5,177,223 3,321,260
Plan fiduciary net position, beginning 30,626,525 27,305,265
Plan fiduciary net position, ending 35,803,748 30,626,525
Net pension liability (asset), ending $  (696,468) § 3,136,780
Plan fiduciary net position as a percent of total

pension liability (asset) 102% 91%

Covered payroll 10,418,558 9,589,154
Net pension liability as a percent of covered payroll -7% 33%
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Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability of the District, calculated using a discount
rate of 5.50 percent for FY2024 and FY2023, as well as what the District’s net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate of one percentage point lower
or one percentage point higher that the rate used:

Net Pension Liability (Asset)

2024 2023
1% decrease (4.50%) $ 3,663,935 § 7,203,055
Current discount rate (5.50%) (696,468) 3,136,780
1% increase (6.50%) (4,217,519) (295,245)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position can be obtained by
writing to: Salem Area Mass Transit District, 555 Court St NE Suite 5230, Salem, OR
97301-3980.

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

For the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the District recognized pension expense of
$2,027,049 and $2,834,025 respectively. The District reported deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources
at June 30, 2024

Deferred Deferred
Inflows of Outflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience  $  (305,575) $ 439,091
Changes of assumptions (223,279) 22,794
Net difference between projected and actual earnings - 51,657
Total § (528854) § 513,542

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2025 $ 110,850
2026 710,574
2027 (445,906)
2028 (390,830)

S (15312)
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The following schedules present the combining Fiduciary Statements of Net Position and the
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position for fiscal years June 30, 2024 and 2023, for the
District’s pension plans.

The fiduciary net position as of June 30 are the following:

As of June 30, 2024
Non-bargaining Bargaining Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 342262  $ 924,494  § 1,266,756
Investments
Fixed income 5,898,171 16,950,982 22,849,153
Stocks 6,205,960 17,928,272 24,134,232
Total investments 12,104,131 34,879,254 46,983,385
Total assets 12,446,393 35,803,748 48,250,141
Fiduciary net position
Restricted for pension benefits $ 12,446,393 $ 35,803,748 $§ 48,250,141
As of June 30, 2023
Non-bargaining Bargaining Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 532,554 $ 1,622,735 § 2,155,289
Investments
Fixed income 4,667,307 13,244,216 17,911,523
Stocks 5,579,336 15,759,573 21,338,909
Total investments 10,246,643 29,003,789 39,250,432
Total assets 10,779,197 30,626,524 41,405,721
Fiduciary net position
Restricted for pension benefits $ 10,779,197  $ 30,626,524 $ 41,405,721
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Salem Area Mass Transit District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

The changes in fiduciary net position for the fiscal years ended June 30 are the following:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2024

Non-bargaining Bargaining Total
Additions
ICMA Transfers $ 641,123  §$ 190,086  $ 831,209
Employer contributions 877,535 3,178,762 4,056,297
Total contributions 1,518,658 3,368,848 4,887,506
Investment income (loss):
Net increase in fair value of investments 1,240,169 3,534,483 4,774,652
Investment expense 61,113 172,905 234,018
Net investment income 1,179,056 3,361,578 4,540,634
Total additions 2,697,714 6,730,426 9,428,140
Deductions
Service benefits 1,030,518 1,553,203 2,583,721
Change in fiduciary net position 1,667,196 5,177,223 6,844,419
Fiduciary net position - Restricted
- beginning of year 10,779,197 30,626,525 41,405,722
Fiduciary net position - Restricted
- end of year $ 12,446,393 $ 35,803,748 $§ 48,250,141

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

Non-bargaining Bargaining Total
Additions
ICMA Transfers $ - 3 53,137  $ 53,137
Employer contributions 934,764 2,870,592 3,805,356
Total contributions 934,764 2,923,729 3,858,493
Investment income (loss):
Net increase in fair value of investments 730,729 2,034,502 2,765,231
Investment expense (56,683) (156,324) (213,007)
Net investment income 674,046 1,878,178 2,552,224
Total additions 1,608,810 4,801,907 6,410,717
Deductions
Service benefits 986,038 1,480,647 2,466,685
Change i fiduciary net position 622,772 3,321,260 3,944,032
Fiduciary net position - Restricted
- beginning of year 10,156,425 27,305,264 37,461,689

Fiduciary net position - Restricted
- end of year $ 10,779,197 § 30,626,524 § 41,405,721




Salem Area Mass Transit District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

B. Defined Contribution Plan

Plan Description
The District provides pension benefits through a defined contribution pension plan. In a
defined contribution plan, benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus
investment earnings. The plan is administered by ICMA. The District’s Board of Directors
holds the authority for establishing and amending plan provisions and contribution
requirements for the defined contribution plan.

Benefits Provided

The defined contribution plan provides pension benefits to eligible full-time non-
bargaining employees. Regular career status employees who have successfully completed
the probationary period of six months or 1,000 hours of service, whichever is later, are
eligible to participate.

Contributions

The District makes all contributions to the plan. The District’s contributions for each
employee (and investment earnings allocated to the employee’s account) are fully vested
after five years of service. District contributions for, and investment earnings forfeited by,
employees who leave employment before five years of service, are used to reduce the
District’s contribution requirements.

The contribution rate is 10 percent of employee’s gross salary for non-bargaining unit
employees. For the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, employer contributions
recognized as expense were $660,681 and $670,118, respectively.

(7) Post Employment Benefits Other than Pensions

A. Plan Description

The District administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan per the
requirements of collective bargaining agreements. The plan provides an explicit employer
benefit of up to the cost per month per pre-Medicare retiree toward postretirement
healthcare insurance for eligible retirees, and at cost for retiree spouses, through the
District’s group health insurance plans, which cover both active and retired participants.

The level of benefits provided by the plan are the same as those afforded to active
employees. This level of coverage is provided to retirees until they become eligible for
Medicare, typically age 65.

Non-Bargaining Employees Covered by Benefit Terms:

Active employees 74
Eligible retirees 3
Spouses of ineligible retirees -
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Salem Area Mass Transit District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

Bargaining Employees Covered by Benefit Terms:

Active employees 154

Eligible retirees 6

Spouses of ineligible retirees -
160

The District’s post-retirement healthcare plan was established in accordance with ORS
243.303. ORS stipulate that for the purpose of establishing healthcare premiums, the rate
must be based on all plan members, including both active employees and retirees and their
spouses. The difference between retiree claim costs (which because of the effect of age is
generally higher in comparison to all plan members) and the amount of retiree healthcare
premiums represents the District’s implicit employer contribution.

The District has not established a trust fund to supplement costs for the net other post-
employment benefit (OPEB) liability. No standalone report is generated for the plan.

B. Funding Policy

The District collects insurance premiums, net of applied explicit benefits, from all retirees
each month. The District then pays health insurance premiums for all retirees at the
blended rate for each family classification. The required contribution to the plan included
the employer’s pay-as-you-go amount, an amount paid by retirees and an additional
amount calculated to prefund future benefits as determined by the actuary. The District has
elected to not pre-fund the actuarially determined future cost. The amount paid by the
District for retirees, and eligible retiree spouses, healthcare for the years ended June 30,
2024 and 2023 was $125,111 and $135,163 respectively.

C. Total OPEB Liability, OPEB Expense and OPEB-Related Deferrals

As of June 30, 2024, the District reported a total OPEB liability of $3,969,834 based on a
July 1, 2023 actuarial valuation, rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2024.
For the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the District recognized OPEB expense
(revenue) of $(48,544), and $44,176, respectively.

At June 30, 2024, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred

Inflows of Outflows of

Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ (565,393) $ 91,355
Changes of assumptions or inputs (920,888) 438,551
Benefit payments - 238,783
Total $(1,486,281) $ 768,689
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Salem Area Mass Transit District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

The $956,375 net deferred inflows/outflows of resources related to OPEB will be
recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2025 $ (293,136)
2026 (260,541)
2027 (105,616)
2028 (68,989)
2029 (95,860)
2030 (96,335)
Thereafter (35,898)

$ (956,375)

D. Actuarial Methods and Assumptions
The actuarial cost method used is the entry age normal actuarial cost method with level
percentage of pay allocation. In order to apply this method, projected benefit payments are
determined for each active employee and retiree. These projected benefit payments are the
net benefits estimated to be payable in all future years. The net benefits for a particular year
are the difference between the total cost of benefits and the portion of the benefits paid by
the retirees in that year.

The discount rate is a single rate of return that is applied to the projected benefit payments
in order to calculate the present value of benefits. Under GASB 75, for plans without
assets, the discount rate is equal to a yield or index rate for 20-year, tax-exempt general
obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The discount rate is
determined as of each measurement date.

The present value of benefits is then allocated over the service of each active employee
from their date of hire to their expected retirement age, as a level percent of the employee’s
projected pay, as required under GASB 75. This level percent multiplied by expected pay is
referred to as the service cost and is that portion of the present value of benefits attributable
to an employee’s service in a given year. The service cost equals $0 for retirees. For
purposes of projecting benefits prior to the valuation date as required by the actuarial cost
method, we assumed a health cost trend equal to the ultimate health cost trend rate.

The total OPEB liability is the portion of the present value of benefits that is attributable to

employee service prior to the valuation date. For retirees, the total OPEB liability equals
the present value of benefits.
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Salem Area Mass Transit District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

The total OPEB liability in the July 1, 2023 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation rate: 2.75%
Salary increases: 3.00%

Actuarial valuation method: Entry age normal level percent of salary

Mortality: RP-2014 sex-distinct Mortality Tables, set forward
one year, generationally projected using Scale MP-
2019. Employee tables were used for active
members and Healthy Annuitant tables were used for
retirees and spouses of retirees

E. Changes in the Total OPEB Liability

2024 2023
Total OPEB Liability
Total OPEB liability, beginning of year $4,161,234  $4,344,979
Service cost 328,310 397,402
Interest on total OPEB liability 155,070 100,083
Effect of economic/demographic gains or losses (651,059) -
Effect of assumption changes 196,288 (462,278)
Benefit payments (220,009) (218,952)
Net change in total OPEB liability (191,400) (183,745)
Total OPEB liability, ending of year $3,969,834  $4,161,234

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate, using rates that are 1%
lower or 1% higher than the current rate, are shown in the following chart:

Discount rate:

OPEB Liability

2024 2023
1% decrease (2.65%, 2.54%) $ 4,255,644 $ 4,487,619
Current discount rate (3.65%, 3.54%) 3,969,834 4,161,234
1% increase (4.65%, 4.54%) 3,703,090 3,858,523
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Salem Area Mass Transit District

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)

For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rate, using rates
that are 1% lower or 1% higher than the current rate, are shown in the following chart:

Healthcare cost trend rate:

1% decrease (9.00%, 7.00%)
Current trend rate (10.00%, 8.00%)
1% increase (11.00%, 9.00%)

(8) Compensated Absences

OPEB Liability

2024 2023

§ 3,576,423 $ 3,718,306
3,969,834 4,161,234
4,428,348 4,682,262

The changes in compensated absences for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 are

summarized below:

Outstanding Outstanding Due
July 1, June 30, Within
2023 Net Change 2024 One Year
Compensated absences $ 1,616,847 $ 303,878 1,920,725  $ 960,363
Outstanding Outstanding Due
July 1, June 30, Within
2022 Net Change 2023 One Year
Compensated absences $ 1,514,721 $ 102,126 $ 1,616,847 $ 808,423

(9) Tax Abatement

The District’s property taxes were reduced by $69,521 in FY24 under agreements entered

into by other governments.

District's Share

Authorizing Government Exemption Program Taxes Abated
Salem Enterprise Zone (City of Salem) Enterprise Zone (ORS 285C) $ 13,521
Marion County Charitable Low Income Rental Housing (ORS 307.541) 11,508
City of Salem Multiple Unit Housing (ORS 307.600 to 637) 44,492

$ 69,521
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Salem Area Mass Transit District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

(10)

an

(12)

The District’s property taxes were reduced by $123,554 in FY23 under agreements entered
into by other governments.

District's Share

Authorizing Government Exemption Program Taxes Abated
Salem Enterprise Zone (City of Salem) Enterprise Zone (ORS 285C) $ 70,507
Marion County Charitable Low Income Rental Housing (ORS 307.541) 17,705
City of Salem Multiple Unit Housing (ORS 307.600 to 637) 35,342

$ 123,554
Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The
District purchases commercial insurance to minimize its exposure to these risks. Settled
claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three years.

Commitments and Contingencies

Under the terms of federal and state grants, periodic audits are required, and costs may be
questioned as not being appropriate under the terms of the grants. Such audits could lead to
reimbursement to the grantor agencies. District management believes disallowance, if any,
will be immaterial. The District is committed under various accepted bid agreements and
contracts for goods, services, equipment, and construction of facilities.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications of amounts previously reported have been made to the
accompanying financial statements to maintain consistency between periods presented. The
reclassifications had no impact on previously reported net position.
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Salem Area Mass Transit District
Schedule of Employer Contributions — Defined Benefit Plan — Non-Bargaining
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year Actuarially Actual Contribution Contribution
Ending Determined Employer Deficiency Covered as a % of
June 30 Contribution ~ Contribution (Excess) Payroll Covered Payroll

2015 $ 400,040 $§ 450,685 § (50,645 § 3,571,786 12.62%
2016 386,311 472,904 (86,593) 3,449,206 13.71%
2017 512,754 566,742 (53,988) 3,512,016 16.14%
2018 609,482 644,325 (34,843) 4,174,534 15.43%
2019 666,464 701,679 (35,215) 4,299,770 16.32%
2020 425,161 811,492 (386,331) 4,790,477 16.94%
2021 458,880 862,643 (403,763) 4,934,191 17.48%
2022 421,824 908,345 (486,521) 5,317,522 17.08%
2023 234,031 934,764 (700,733) 4,875,644 19.17%
2024 270,636 877,535 (606,899) 5,523,185 15.89%

Notes to Schedule:

Valuation date: 7/1/2023

Investment rate of return assumption: 5.50%

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial cost method: Entry age normal
Amortization method: Level dollar

Type of period: Layered (each base is amortized over a separate closed period)

Amortization period at 7/1/23: 12 years
Amortization growth rate: 0.00%

Asset valuation method: Market value

Inflation: 2.75%

Salary increases: 4.25% for first 5 years of service; 3.25% thereafter

Investment rate of return: 5.50%

Cost of living adjustments: None

Turnover: Service based

Mortality: RP-2014 tables, generationally projected using Scale MP-2019
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Salem Area Mass Transit District
Schedule of Employer Contributions — Defined Benefit Plan - Bargaining
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Contribution

Fiscal Year Actuarially Actual Contribution as a % of

Ending Determined Employer Deficiency Covered Covered

June 30 Contribution ~ Contribution (Excess) Payroll Payroll

2015 $ 1,385,691 $ 1,374,052 $ 11,639 $ 5,632,890 24.39%
2016 1,447,252 1,470,050 (22,798) 5,883,137 24.99%
2017 1,620,016 1,778,155 (158,139) 5,912,467 30.07%
2018 1,871,550 1,846,814 24,736 6,830,475 27.04%
2019 2,075,440 2,221,893 (146,453) 7,035,389 31.58%
2020 1,615,959 2,274,734 (658,775) 6,763,144 33.63%
2021 1,720,611 2,533,622 (813,011) 6,966,038 36.37%
2022 1,571,329 2,772,055 (1,200,726) 9,309,858 29.78%
2023 1,543,854 2,870,592 (1,326,738) 9,589,154 29.94%
2024 1,677,388 3,178,762 (1,501,374) 10,418,558 30.51%

Notes to Schedule:
Valuation date: 7/1/2023
Investment rate of return assumption: 5.50%

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:
Actuarial cost method: Entry age normal
Amortization method: Level dollar

Type of period: Layered (each base is amortized over a separate closed period)
Amortization period at 7/1/23: 12 years

Amortization growth rate: 0.00%

Asset valuation method: Market value

Inflation: 2.75%
Salary increases: 4.25% for first 5 years of service; 3.25% thereafter
Investment rate of return: 5.50%

Cost of living adjustments: None

Turnover: Service based

Mortality: RP-2014 tables, generationally projected using Scale MP-2019
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Supplementary Information

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES
Pursuant to the provision of Oregon Revised Statutes, an individual schedule of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balance — balance and actual be displayed for each fund where
legally adopted budgets are required.
Enterprise Budgetary Comparison schedules include the following:

- General Fund

- Capital Projects Fund
- Transportation Programs Fund
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Salem Area Mass Transit District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual On A Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis — General Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

Budget
Original Final Actual Variance
Revenues
Local revenue
Passenger fares, passes & other fixed route services $ 2,134,783 $§ 2,134,783 $ 2,349,710 $ 214,927
Property taxes 14,762,527 14,762,527 15,313,135 550,608
Courthouse square rentals - - 100,544 100,544
Earnings on investments 998,797 998,797 2,413,053 1,414,256
Miscellaneous 438,008 438,008 179,670 (258,338)
Total local revenue 18,334,115 18,334,115 20,356,112 2,021,997
State revenue
STIF funds 5,992,526 5,992,526 7,949,571 1,957,045
State in lieu taxes 8,600,000 8,600,000 10,068,949 1,468,949
Total state revenue 14,592,526 14,592,526 18,018,520 3,425,994
Federal revenue
Urbanized area formula (Section 5307) 3,202,037 3,202,037 3,202,037 -
Energy tax credits 240,000 240,000 182,373 (57,627)
Renewable natural gas tax credit 230,000 230,000 197,097 (32,903)
FTA metropolitan & statewide planning (5303) 120,000 120,000 120,000 -
ARPA funds - - 1,724,812 1,724,812

Total federal revenue 3,792,037 3,792,037 5,426,319 1,634,282
Total revenues 36,718,678 36,718,678 43,800,951 7,082,273
Expenditures

General Manager/Board 1,394,739 1,394,739 989,637 405,102

Deputy General Manager 2,920,450 2,920,450 1,913,756 1,006,694

Human Resources and Labor Relations 1,495,190 1,495,190 1,261,706 233,484

Finance 1,863,562 1,863,562 1,759,391 104,171

Information Technology & Infrastructure 1,871,879 1,871,879 1,559,089 312,790

Communication 2,193,275 2,193,275 1,905,936 287,339

Operations 29,872,098 29,872,098 27,746,883 2,125,215

Planning & Development 1,805,416 1,805,416 1,374,887 430,529.00

Unallocated - General Administration 1,608,650 1,608,650 1,569,345 39,305

Contingency 1,500,000 1,500,000 - 1,500,000
Total expenditures 46,525,259 46,525,259 40,080,630 6,444,629
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (9,806,581) (9,806,581) 3,720,321 13,526,902
Other financing sources (uses)

Transfer out to other funds (8,111,888) (8,111,888) (8,111,888) -
Net change in fund balance (17,918,469) (17,918,469) (4,391,567) 13,526,902
Fund balance, beginning of year 51,637,254 51,637,254 45,477,430 (6,159,824)
Fund balance, end of year $ 33,718,785 $ 33,718,785 $ 41,085,863 $ 7,367,078
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Salem Area Mass Transit District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual On A Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis — Capital Projects Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

Budget
Revenues Original Final Actual Variance
State Revenue
STIF funds $ 3,339,729 § 3,339,729 § 547,097 $ (2,792,632)
Miscellaneous income 1,345,000 1,345,000 970,000 (375,000)
Total state revenue 4,684,729 4,684,729 1,517,097 (3,167,632)
Federal revenue
Urbanized area formula (Section 5307) 6,792,376 6,792,376 1,465,425 (5,326,951)
Federal STP Funds 1,287,729 1,287,729 768,717 (519,012)
Transportation for elderly persons and persons with disabilities (5310) 717,840 717,840 4,321 (713,519)
Bus & Bus Facilities Infrastructure Investment Program (5339) 11,766,234 11,766,234 8,754,740 (3,011,494)
Discretionary grants - section (5309) - - 48,519 48,519

Total federal revenue 20,564,179 20,564,179 11,041,722 (9,522,457)
Total revenues 25,248,908 25,248,908 12,558,819 (12,690,089)
Expenditures

Deputy General Manager 1,922,729 1,922,729 422,872 1,499,857

Finance 46,824 46,824 (10,487) 57,311

Information Technology & Infrastructure 586,000 586,000 244,139 341,861

Operations 21,017,306 21,017,306 14,144,716 6,872,590

Planning & Development 6,130,834 6,130,834 697,964 5,432,870
Total expenditures 29,703,693 29,703,693 15,499,204 14,204,489
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (4,454,785) (4,454,785) (2,940,385) 1,514,400
Other financing sources (uses)

Transfer from general fund 4,454,784 4,454,784 4,454.785 1
Net change in fund balance (@) (1) 1,514,400 1,514,401
Fund balance, beginning of year 3,198,318 3,198,318 8,471,466 5,273,148
Fund balance, end of year $ 3,198317 § 3,198,317 $§ 9985866 $ 6,787,549
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Salem Area Mass Transit District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual On A Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis — Transportation Programs Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

Revenues

Local revenue
Passenger fares
Other Pass Through
Miscellaneous income

Total local revenue

State revenue
Special transportation fund program (ODOT)
STIF funds

Federal revenue
Developmental disabilities transportation services (DD53)
Transportation for elderly persons and persons with disabilities (5310)
Formula grants for other than urbanized areas (5311)
Rideshare/TDM grant
Urbanized area formula (Section 5307)

Total federal revenue

Total revenues

Expenditures
Planning & Development
Communication
Operations

Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfer from general fund

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Budget
Original Final Actual Variance
$ 305161 $ 305161 § 231,296 §  (73,865)
1,176,912 1,176,912 849,476 (327,436)
40,673 40,673 86,876 46,203
1,522,746 1,522,746 1,167,648 (355,098)
966,885 966,885 946,698 (20,187)
4,570,704 4,570,704 2,935,591 (1,635,113)
657,018 657,018 1,360,308 703,290
376,958 376,958 383,312 6,354
366,336 366,336 385,902 19,566
870,962 870,962 189,738 (681,224)
552,456 552,456 552,456 -
2,823,730 2,823,730 2,871,716 47,986
9,884,065 9,884,065 7,921,653 (1,962,412)
1,551,462 1,551,462 1,440,489 110,973
145,360 145,360 89,228 56,132
9,462,743 9,462,743 8,947,243 515,500
11,159,565 11,159,565 10,476,960 682,605
(1,275,500)  (1,275,500)  (2,555,307)  (1,279,807)
3,657,104 3,657,104 3,657,104 -
2,381,604 2,381,604 1,101,797 (1,279,807)
4,029,378 4,029,378 8,538,671 4,509,293

$ 6410982 $ 6,410,982 $ 9,640,468 § 3,229,486
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Salem Area Mass Transit District

Schedule of Expenditure Comparison

Budgetary Division Basis vs Object Classification Basis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

Capital Project  Transportation  District Wide
General Fund Fund Programs Fund Total
Expenditures by Division
General Manager/Board $ 989,637 $ - $ - 3 989,637
Deputy General Manager 1,913,756 422,872 - 2,336,628
Human Resources and Labor Relations 1,261,706 - - 1,261,706
Finance 1,759,391 (10,487) - 1,748,904
Information Technology & Infrastructure 1,559,089 244,139 - 1,803,228
Communication 1,905,936 14,144,716 89,228 16,139,880
Operations 27,746,883 - 8,947,243 36,694,126
Planning & Development 1,374,887 697,964 1,440,489 3,513,340
Unallocated 1,569,345 - - 1,569,345
Total expenditures $ 40,080,630 $ 15,499,204 $ 10,476,960 $ 66,056,794
Expenditures by Object Classification
Personnel services $ 32,334,073 $ 5213 $ 996,627 $  33,335913
Materials and services 7,746,557 176,087 9,480,333 17,402,977
Capital outlay - 15,317,904 - 15,317,904
Total expenditures $ 40,080,630 $§ 15499204 $ 10,476,960 $ 66,056,794
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Salem Area Mass Transit District

Reconciliation of Net Change in Fund Balance on a Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis to

Changes in Net Position on a GAAP Basis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

Net change in fund balance:
General fund
Capital projects fund
Transportation programs fund

Total change in fund balance

GAAP basis adjustments:
Capitalized capital assets
Disposal of capital assets
Depreciation expense
Accrued vacation and sick payable
Net pension liability including related deferrals
Property taxes accrual
Total OPEB liability adjustment including related deferrals

Change in net position

$

(4,391,567)
1,514,400
1,101,797

(1,775,370)

15,498,399
(497,400)
(3,082,647)
(303,878)
1,302,228
72,948
48,544

$

11,262,824

54



99

998°586°6 $

D2 fO pusT ‘doup)pg pun.y

99¥"1Lb'8 $ 99t ILYS D3y Jo SupuuSag aoupjpg pun.y

00V P1S°T $ 20uppg pun.J ui 23uvyy) 1N

S8LbSHY $ S8LYSHY 82041108 SuIpUI] 424)0
(s8e'0r6't)  § YOT665'ST L60°LIS T $ WL $ s[pjo qng a2.nog

00416°1 $ S8LYSHY PO6'LIEST  §  LSO'9LI § €IT'S L60°LbS $ 000°0L6 $  cop $ LIL'RIL $ 6ST'C088  $ 1€t $ TS9Pl $ sipiog qng

S8LPSHY SRLSHY - - - - - - - - - - Jajsuel], pun,f
(62L°L9) - STI'69€ €20°11 €1T's TEE'TT - - - 00£'S6C - - 101090 NISUBIL, WRA[ES YINOS  HNDLSS
(685'12) - 986091 €988y - - - - 062881 - - - oid Ardwi A[1qisseo0y doyg (8007 JIVS[E0]
(98°p21) - S0T°Te8 44 - - - - - S9S°LOL - - armpnuseryu] Swsiey) gag LN JUBIIDLN
(8L¥'$€0) - 9ITLEN’T w6€ - - - - - 69£'209 - 19L°661 aimonuselyu Swsiey) gag Md - JUBIYOMA
8rT'LT) - 8YT'LI - - - - - - - - - wo[day] pred) %9 1opeay PIe) OLN ® MA  $S00¥T
(€15°91) - £95°28 - - - - - - - - 050°99 wa)sAG Fuisuadsiqq pINLY PEayiang  9H007T
(L10°]) - ¥L6‘S - - - - - - - - LS6 Juawae[day 19AIS X0qare, 00T
(L81°9) - S€6'sT - - - - - - - - 8¥L0C IEMIJOG/IOAIDS 0APIA ANOY PAXL]  €400FT
(005°¢) - 00S°LT - - - - - - - - 000°t1 €20¢ 1owaoe[day AUIOBN AL 0¥00+T
(891) - - 0r8 - - - - - L9 - - siuawaAo1dwy doig sng [euoday SE00¥T
(zL) - SLy - - - - £0r - - - - eyyup %9 (A1b §) a9 4dD-SAD TCAd  $E00KT
(€68°L) - - - - - - - - - - (c68°L) MQ e siedoy Kemy[eqy  €€00¥C
(00¥°¢) - 000°L1 - - - - - - - - 009°€1 SAS JWBIA AN[1QeSI1/2A83 PAI03I0Id  8TOOKT
(¥S1°9) - 0LL'ST - - - - - - - - 919°0T (z oseyq) pT A 10UIQE) WOOY sked  LTOOPT
(€90°01) - 91’08 - - - - - - - - €570t $TAL 1doy dinby 910K 1T WOMIN  12004T
(9€z'en) - ¥81°99 - - - - - - - - 8¥6°CS PTA 10 19AIAG AORYIT HOMIBN  81007CT
(Z9¥'9L) - 9Y°9L - - - - - - - - - 3[OIYRA YN SODII9E [BUOIZY A[LS  8000T
(86€°01) - 26615 - - - - - - - - 7651+ uaWde|day] 1210y S92V AIQON SN LO00YT
(1) - SLy - - - - - - 4 - - egup % (Ab §) gIg ON-MOT £ZAd 9000+
(¥66°39) - 8TI'EHe S - - - - - - - 6L6°SLT Selowe)) ST ALNVS  10005C
(661°097) - ¥9T¥8L 00L - S9L'FTS - - - - - - (1) 97IS-WYBRY [00T “ARY-SAIYAA  6T00ET
(@) - - 80t - - - - - 9z¢ - - CTA SHUaW0R[daY ISIOH APIPA MA €TO0ET
(sen) - 006 956°€ - - - - - - (k434 - SAOIYIA wawdoe[day VAV OND L TTO0ET
(reren - 79¢'81 88Tt - - - - - 6158t - - sapeiBdp) A1noag 1xq % 20Ud MA  1200€T
(0z2) - 001°T - - - - - - - - 088 TTAA APAD T wowdmby OMBN  8100€T
01€°F) - T8S1T - - - - - - - - WLl SOIYa A Juawaoe[day Josialdng L 100€T
(766'9) - L6y - - - - - - - - 8L6°GE 1o81ey) A1aneg OO AqeHod  9100ET
(008°1) - 0006 - - - - - - - - 002'L wWaISAS 1UWAFRURA JUAPU]  $100ET
(589°L) - £TH'SE - - - - - - - - 8€L°0€ yuredayy/areday 1xg 8pig uwpy Md - CL00ET
(ser'y) - 6871 - - - - - - - - LS6°L 0udY UrY JuoJ-11) [[e) SpIg WWPY MA  6000€C
(zL9°0¢) - L8661 9LE'E - - - - - - - 169°TT1 Juawa0e[day ISI0H A[OIYIA Aeg weals  8000€T
(016%0) - €55zl - - - - - - £9°66 - - 1d.LY % Aoud [euSig suer,  L000ST
(£58°99) - 658°9t9 (4844 - - - - LTH08S - - 069°1 Juawade[day (SLID) SLI SOMIAY)  9000£T
SL6IT - - (L8r'on) - - - - - 88H°11 - - uonejuowadw] [LYVIN-SIUNN d¥T  S000€T
(886°6) - 0v6'6t - - - - - - - - 756°6¢ Sunuteday Jooy [N BpIG WWPY MA H000ET
(695°L6L°1) - S61°0S0°01 L¥6°0L - - 000°0L6 - - €L6'9€0°L - 009°91¢ vonewwadwy 7-77A4 (O 01) 98 £000€T
(0L£°9€) $ - 158181 $ - $ - - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ I8F'sHI $ wAISAS WA Je SSANIEILOY  1000ET

a8uey) 1N SIJSueI], KepnQ [ende) $301AT0S SAITAIG spung AILS Sv{ - siuein 410 spunyj 6£€S weidorg saniqesiq LOES enuiio g ey y0foag 0loag
79 S[BLIIBIN [uuosid g Kreuonardsig aiels - Surpunyg 109fo1d  JLS [BIOPa] JuaunsaAu )M SUOSId  BAIY paziueqin
Aunwwo)) mpnanselup Ap19p1q 10]
NAR SANI[IOR] uoreliodsuel],
sngj % sng
sanypuadxy SINUIANY e)S SINUIANY [BI1IPIY

$70T ‘0€ dunp papuy JIed X dy) 10

siseq 393png JVVO-UoN & uo s3dxloag eyde)

Jdueeq puny ul sdsuey)) pue SIMIPUIAXF ‘SINUIAIY JO [NPIYIS
ILDSI( JISURL], SSBIA] BAIY WIS



Salem Area Mass Transit District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Transportation Programs on a Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

Revenues
Local revenue
Passenger fares

Other pass through
Miscellaneous income

Total local revenue

State revenue

Special transportation fund program (ODOT)
STIF funds

Total state revenue

Federal revenue

Developmental disabilities transportation services (DD53)
Transportation for elderly persons and persons with disabilities (5310)
Formula grants for other than urbanized areas (5311)

Rideshare/TDM grant

Urbanized area formula (Section 5307)

Total federal revenue

Total revenues

Expenditures
Personnel services
Materials and services
Other materials and services

Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfer from general fund

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Cherriots Shop Cherriots

Cherriots Lift & Ride Regional

$ 134,479 $ 13,758  $ 83,059
134,479 13,758 83,059

- 56,496 810,138

702,372 54,044 1,036,491
702,372 110,540 1,846,629
1,360,308 - -
170,823 212,489 -

- - 385,902

552,456 - -
2,083,587 212,489 385,902
2,920,438 336,787 2,315,590
408,385 55,475 287,487
5,433,461 347,489 2,414,946
5,841,846 402,964 2,702,433
(2,921,408) (66,177) (386,843)
3,657,104 - -
735,696 (66,177) (386,843)
4,841,169 91,543 2,218,991

S 5,576,865 $ 25,366 $ 1,832,148
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Special Total

DMAP/ Charriots Call Mobility Transportation Cherriots Transportation
WVCH Center Management Coordination Rideshare TripChoice Programs Fund
-3 -3 -3 -3 - 8 - 8 231,296
- - - 849,476 - 849,476
- - - 86,876 - - 86,876
- - - 936,352 - - 1,167,648
- - 80,064 - - - 946,698
- - 7,120 1,135,564 - - 2,935,591
- - 87,184 1,135,564 - - 3,882,289
_ - - - - - 1,360,308
- - - - - - 383,312
- - - - - - 385,902
- - - - 1,138 188,600 189,738
- - - - - - 552,456
- - - - 1,138 188,600 2,871,716
- - 87,184 2,071,916 1,138 188,600 7,921,653
- - 49,192 22,417 2,789 170,882 996,627
- - 40,036 1,221,856 - 22,545 9,480,333
- - 89,228 1,244,273 2,789 193,427 10,476,960
- - (2,044) 827,643 (1,651) (4,827) (2,555,307)
- - - - - - 3,657,104
- - (2,044) 827,643 (1,651) (4,827) 1,101,797
(631) 54,398 5,986 1,319,957 - 7,258 8,538,671

(631) $ 54,398 $ 3942 § 2,147,600 §$ (1,651) $ 2,431 $ 9,640,468




Statistical Section
This part of the District’s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report presents detailed information
as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures,
and required supplementary information says about the District’s overall financial health.

Contents

Financial Trend Information
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand
how the District’s financial performance and well-being have changed
over time.

Revenue Capacity Information
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors
affecting the District’s ability to generate its most significant local
revenue source, property taxes.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the
reader understand the environment within which the District’s financial
activities take place.

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the
reader understand how the information in the District’s financial report
relates to the services the District provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the financial
statements for the relevant year.
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Financial Trend Information
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Salem Area Mass Transit District
Principal Property Taxpayers
Current Fiscal Year and Nine Years Ago

2024 2015
Percentage of Percentage of
Taxable Total Taxable Taxable Total Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Rank Value Value Rank Value Value
Portland General Electric Co 1 $ 271,190,340 1.19% 1 $ 126,569,221 0.81%
Northwest Natural Gas Co 2 232,830,000 1.02% 2 92,097,700 0.59%
Comcast Corporation 3 124,625,862 0.55% 7 39,818,000 0.26%
Bit Investment Ninety-Seven LLC 4 85,460,280 0.38% -
Pacific Realty Associates LLC 5 63,823,050 0.28% -
State Accident Insurance Fund 6 62,385,490 0.27%
Lancaster Development Company LLC 7 59,709,400 0.26% 3 58,833,290 0.38%
GRI Keizer LLC 8 57,093,790 0.25% -
Snyders-Lance Inc 9 50,539,370 0.22% -
State Investments LLC 10 46,626,340 0.20% 8 38,153,602 0.24%
CenturyLink - 4 47,886,000 0.31%
Donahue Schriber Realty Group - 5 51,968,800 0.33%
Metropolitan Life Insurance Co - 6 45,385,410 0.29%
Wal-Mart Real Estate Business Trust - 9 33,706,160 0.22%
HD Salem OR Landlord LLC - 10 33,954,000 0.22%
Total for principal taxpayers 1,054,283,922 4.63% 568,372,183 3.64%
Total taxable assessed value $ 22,767,647,080 $ 15,611,200,594

Sources:
Marion County and Polk County Tax Assessors
Top Ten for both counties consolidated
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Salem Area Mass Transit District
Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Collected within the
Year Total Tax Fiscal Year of the Levy Collections in Total Collections to Date
Ended Levy for Amount Percentage  Subsequent Amount Percentage
June 30 Fiscal Year Collected of Levy Years Collected of Levy
2024 15,771,003 $ 15,025,740 95.27% $ - $ 15,025,740 95.27%
2023 15,175,489 14,496,110 95.52% 151,239 14,647,349 96.52%
2022 14,497,537 13,847,840 95.52% 181,370 14,029,210 96.77%
2021 13,949,784 13,331,718 95.57% 146,018 13,477,736 96.62%
2020 13,375,200 12,747,112 95.30% 243,831 12,990,943 97.13%
2019 12,906,585 12,304,644 95.34% 242,713 12,547,357 97.22%
2018 12,426,577 11,958,195 96.23% 268,347 12,226,542 98.39%
2017 11,965,300 11,378,225 95.09% 273,321 11,651,546 97.38%
2016 11,509,781 10,905,167 94.75% 280,272 11,185,439 97.18%
2015 10,882,259 10,279,838 94.46% 304,968 10,584,806 97.27%
Sources:

Marion County Assessor and Polk County Treasurer
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Salem Area Mass Transit District
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Personal Income Per Capita Personal Unemployment

Year Population (1)  (in thousands) Income (3) Rate (4)
2024 347,798 $ 21,777,307 * § 61,043 * 3.9%
2023 346,741 20,274,092 58,470 3.6%
2022 348,616 20,538,903 58,632 3.9%
2021 347,119 18,671,730 53,791 5.0%
2020 346,202 16,971,368 49,022 6.9%
2019 344,842 15,490,534 44921 3.9%
2018 344,035 14,024,346 41,093 4.3%
2017 339,200 12,836,365 38,168 4.5%
2016 333,950 12,301,699 37,199 5.5%
2015 329,770 11,614,203 35,614 6.1%
Note:

This schedule is for Marion County and is provided as reference only. The District
operates in both Marion and Polk Counties, however more operations occur in
Marion than Polk County.

(1) Population estimate as of July 1, 2024; Population Research Center,

Portland State University

(2) Personal Income estimate as of calendar year 2023; Bureau of Economic
Analysis, Regional Economic Data

(3) Per Capita Personal Income as of calendar year 2023; Bureau of Economic
Analysis, Regional Economic Data

(4) Unemployment Rate is average of 10 months of calendar year 2024; Bureau of
Labor Statistics, Local Unemployment Statistics

* Estimated

Sources:

US Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis; Regional Economic Data
US Bureau of Labor Statistics, Local Area Unemployment Statistics
Population Research Center, Portland State University
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Salem Area Mass Transit District

Salem Metropolitan Area Employers — Largest to Smallest

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2024 2015
% of % of
Employer Employees Total Employees Total
Government 45,700 24.21% 41,108 26.93%
Educational and health services 37,900 20.07% 24,283 15.90%
Trade, transportation, and utilities 30,100 15.94% 24,925 16.32%
Leisure and hospitality 18,900 10.01% 13,308 8.71%
Professional and business services 15,800 8.37% 13,958 9.14%
Construction 13,500 7.15% 8,125 5.32%
Manufacturing 12,300 6.51% 12,450 8.15%
Financial activities 6,300 3.34% 7,175 4.70%
Other services 5,900 3.13% 5,233 3.43%
Information 1,700 0.90% 1,000 0.65%
Mining and logging 700 0.37% 1,150 0.76%
Total Salem Metropolitan Area
Non-Farm Payroll Employment 188,800 100.00% 152,715 100.00%

Source: Oregon Employment Department Salem Area MSA Nonfarm Employment - CES Data

Notes: (1) Information for 2015 is presented for the calendar year.

Information for 2024 is preliminary numbers for October, 2024.

(2) Includes full-time and part-time employees
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Salem Area Mass Transit District
District Employees by Division
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Division
General Fund
General Manager 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 4.5 4.5 3.0 3.0 3.0
Administration
Human Resources 4.5 4.1 4.7 52 4.8 4.8 4.8 4.8 5.8 5.8
Human Resources-Safety 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Communication
Marketing & Communication 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 4.0 4.3 4.3 4.3 4.3 43
Customer Service 6.1 6.0 5.8 5.8 8.9 8.3 8.3 8.3 8.3 8.7
Travel Trainer - - 0.2 0.1 0.3 0.4 0.4 1.2 1.2 1.2
Finance
Finance 6.5 6.5 7.5 5.0 6.9 9.5 9.5 9.5 8.5 9.0
Procurement - - - 2.6 1.6 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0
Technology and Program Management
Technology and Program Management - - - - - - - 1.5 1.5 -
Information Technology - - - - - 5.9 5.9 5.9 5.9 -
Deputy General Manager
Deputy General Manager Admin - - - - - - - 2.0 2.0 3.0
Security & Emergency Management - - - - - - - 3.0 4.0 3.0
Safety Coordinator - - - - - - - - - 1.0
Planning and Development
Administration - - - - - - - - - 1.0
Planning - - - - - - - - - 5.0
Technology and Infrastructure - - - - - - - - - 5.9
Operations
Administration 3.0 3.0 3.1 3.1 4.1 4.1 4.1 3.0 4.0 2.0
Security & Emergency Management 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 3.0 3.0 - - -
Fixed Route Operations 110.0 110.0 110.0 110.0 136.0 147.5 147.5 147.8 148.0 158.0
Vehicle Maintenance 24.5 24.0 24.1 23.6 31.8 31.1 311 31.1 31.1 30.4
Facilities Maintenance 6.0 6.0 6.0 8.0 9.0 9.0 9.0 13.0 9.6 11.6
Planning - - - - - 4.0 4.0 4.0 5.0 -
Transportation Development
Transportation Development Administration 4.0 4.5 5.6 6.4 6.1 - - - - -
Information Technology 4.5 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.1 - - - - -
Rideshare Program - - - - - - - - - -
Total General Fund FTE Per Budget 176.0 176.5 179.0 181.8 222.6 2394 2394 2454 2452 2559
Special Transportation Fund
Cherriots Lift 35 35 3.1 3.1 37 34 34 34 34 33
Cherriots Shop & Ride - - 0.2 0.2 0.6 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3
Cherriots Regional 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.0 1.5 0.9 0.9 1.9 1.3 22
DMAP 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.0 - - - - -
Cherriots Call Center 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.5 0.7 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1
Mobility Management/Travel Trainer 3.0 2.0 2.1 0.8 1.6 1.5 1.5 0.6 0.6 0.6
Special Transportation Coordination - 0.5 0.1 0.2 0.3 - - - - -
TripChoice/Transportation Demand Mgt 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.5 3.0 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.0
Total Special Transportation Fund FTE Per Budget ~ 12.5 12.0 11.5 9.3 11.4 8.7 8.7 8.8 8.2 8.5
Capital Project Fund 1.5 1.0 32 1.6 0.4 - - - - -
Total District Wide FTE Per Budget 190.0 189.5 193.7 1927 2344  248.1 248.1 2542 2534 2644

71



"ALN Jod 52 [ d-¥3( JO pealsut Ld-gIA Ul PIPR[OUI 9q 0} PAOW SeA X3]d AJUN0D) J[0d ‘€TOTAA Ul -

"9I3Y) POPNOUI ST PUE ‘QITAISS aSUOASY PUBWA( JO UOTITULIP Y} SI3OUI YOIYM X[ Ayuno)) yjog
Ay Surpnjoxa ‘Ayred paryy e £q pajesodo sajnol [euoi3ay sapn[oul pue ‘sng J0j0J\ - uonejrodsuer],
paseyaing jo uonturyap Surzodar (LN Y SIS[JAI 9pOW MU SIY) ‘0Z0TA] Ul Sunie)S,

98°1L 6¥'ST s oLy 0TTYe S6E°L9Y'1 $20T 1€0°L01 897°CCS L¥0°08S %0°S 80L°LTLT SL8'9¢1 ¥20¢
€0'C 18°LT [<h% Iy £50°vT 60 P91°1 £20T L8678 991°11IS STSSLS %1°S  060°€9€T L6L'0TT £20T
L1T 1L°0€ 1€y SLE 9TL1T €L0°L6S TT0T 89¢€°€9 8TLIISY LTO'61S %0°L  9EL'SKE'I LEIET (44114
1T¢C 6LT¢ Ly Iy 99581 LET'SYS 120T 8%6°9S 1€2°96€ 066°€SY %00 06S°L98°1 - 120¢
el § 08Ll $ Lé6¢€ $ Ssre § vToLl TT8E8T] 0202 LY9'18 620°99¢ 0z8°0Ty %I'8  9P0ESY'T  § SEISIT  § 020¢
Al 193udssed 1dN JIIIAl NUIAIY  JIA J9d  SINOH INUIAIY SN J3udssed JdvdX [edsi] (LdN) sdiL SN SN uIsIeAl asuadxy ANUIAIY dley Jded X [€ISI
1d dsuadxy  aad asuadxy aad aswadxy  Isuadxy IPIYIA [ENUUY [enuuy J93udssed ANUIAIY APIYIA  INUIAY Sunerdo
SupgesadQ Superddg Superndp SuperdQ payuIjun [enuuy [enuuy
+9)N0Y PIXI] [euoISIY +9)N0Y PIXIY [BUOISIY
8L'Yy 9¢'Cl 08°S1T 08'¥1 781°90C YTOrreE's $20T 8LL'STT'E 806°97S‘C 1LL969°T %6°S 66S°L16°6€ 0IL6¥ET ¥20t
€T’S €S°€l 89°G1 €971 €EVv61 TLOSEI'L £20C 6v9°TILT  09Y'T8ET  68YESST %L'S  CY8YIELE 658°911°C €20
8I°¢S L8'ST LTYI 0¢'el 781°%81 8€0°1¥C9 20T S6S'6£0°T 157°89T°C 859°TEV'T %T'S 61L°8S€°TE G9€'889°1 (44114
06°S 90°81 L€l £8°C1 L61°T81 T8L°65STS 120T €88°81L°1 9E¥'85TT 860°61+°C %00 §T6°9€0°1€ - 120T
9¢°¢ 6801 L0V 14831 T0v°€91 S06'710°8 020T 0ST°619°C 0vE'870°C LOO'TLIT %C9  6£6°SESST OLTILLT 020t
0L 168 0¥'Cl 0911 6¥6°L91 YLOESL'6 610C LLY'SS6°T ISIPTI'T  9€€°0LTT %¢E'8 798°€¥E°9C 1LT961°C 610C
WwT €8 LAYt 0L°01 ¥00°991 9LE'8€6°6 810C 679°110°€ 0S8°911°C LOS'68T°C %E0l  0S6°€6¥ YT 688°615°C 810T
17T 96°'L 896 450 LSHELT S98°€0L 6 L10T S95°0¥6°C TLTLIV'T  005°99S°T %1'Tl  TOL'S6E°ET 0OvL'ST8T L10T
90'C vTL 86'6 LE6 €87°6S1 SPL'9SS 01 9102 TTO666'T  TES'ELIT  TESIIET %90l ¥I¥669°1C Y0S°S0€°T 9102
SL'T $ <19 $ 8001 $ LY6 $  9¥TsSI OvLL98°T1 S10T LIS'TLE'E $75°650°C 626'161°C %9°Tl  €S9°ISL'0T  $ 9I8°€T9T $ S10T
A 193udssed LdN JMIA ONUIAIY  JMIA J9d  SINOH INUIAIY  SI[IIA Id3udssed JavdX [eISI] (LdN) sdiiy, SIMAI SIIIAL uIsaey asuadxy INUIAIY dae] JedX [BISIY
Jod asuadxyy  aod aswadxy Jad asuadxy  dsuadxy  JIYIA [enuuy [enuuy J93udssed ANUIANY APIYIA  INUIAY Sunesado
SuperddQ Superddg Superddp  Superado payuIun [enuuy [enuuy
WAISAS IINO0Y PIXI] WIISAS )INO0Y PIXIY

SIBI X [BISI U, Ise|
SAINSBIJA] }S0)) PUE INUIANY SunerddQ
JOLISI(] JISURBL], SSBJA] BIIY WI[BS



€L

"ALN 10d se [ J-gIN 0} paaow sem X3 Auno) [0d oY} ‘€TOTAL Ul -

'S90IAI0S X9 AJuno)) [oJ ay) pue ‘opry 2 doys ‘Y SJOLLIdY) SIPN[OUL MOU J] "SOPOW IDIAISS
10§ suonturyop 1odor N 109101 03 paueyd sonsniess Sunerddo osuodsoy puewoq ‘0Z0TAL Ul -

*LT0T A ut Surjdures pojonpuod ST YL ‘9T0ZAd PUt 10T A 10F so[w 1oJudssed
110da1 10U 0) paaISe 101SI Ay} OS dpowr osuodsal puewdp uo duop sem Jurjduwes ou ‘4L TOTA T UT 44

LT0 <y Lo L0 $S0Cl 12T EELT 20T €00°v8 LYEToV LYET6V %S'€€l  LyvrSE SLI‘ELY 20T
810 1Ly £8°0 £€8°0 L88°CI 8T8 1T £20T 12816 $98°8¢€S $98°8¢€S %L'STl  SELOVY €89°19¢ €70T
10 w's 080 080 8€8°9 LSS'BETT (4414 880t TTL 66T TTL66T %6'L01  TS6°8ET 9Y6°LST (4414
20 €89 ¥9°0 +9°0 00S°S 911°869 120¢T v15°CC 0SE1vT 0S€'1¥C %1'86  €88°€SI 168°0S1 120¢T
€10 oLty 6S°0 6S°0 S6TTI 911°L61°C 020t 5168 LSTYLY LSTYLY %S v01  TTY'LLT 761°06C 0202
0r1°0 L6°E SS°0 [S9N1] 9LE VI 9€8°656°C 610¢T L9T°9L LST¥SS L81YSS %8201 €17°T0¢ 7T8°01¢€ 610C
(N0) €'y SS°0 S9N0] €08°€1 168°8¥8°C 810C 0szoL 081°8CS 08¥°8¢S %L P01 810°06C S09°€0€ 810¢C
LO0 Sv'C 1€0 1€°0 seel 101°0SS°C L10T 165°CL 961°8LS 961°8LS %T'SET  €06°LLI 69€°81Y L10T
80°0 1T°e €0 €0 10T°¢€l 0r0°661°¢ 910¢ YLLSL L16°99S L16°99S %T'661  S8TSYT 159881 910¢C
y1'o $ S6v $ +90 $ 90 $  SIPII 81°798°C S10T 780°6L 8€6°€19 8€6°€19 %6'CCl  S6L16€ $ oes’I8y  $ S10T
JMIA 193udssed LdN JIIIAl GNUIAY JA 419d  SINOF INUIAIY  SIIA] JoSudsseg JwdX [edsi] (LdN) sdiay SIMAI SIMIAI urdaIe asuadxyy ANUIAIY dav,] ABIX [BISI]
a9d ssuadxyy  aod asuadxyy aad asuadxyy asuadxy JPIYIA [BNUUY [enuuy Jd8udssed ANUIAIY JIYIA ANUIAIY SuneradQ

SunerddQo SunesadQo sunerddQ SuperddQo payuIun [enuuy [enuuy

[oodue A [oodue A
0L'6 00°LS L0°0T 10°6 LLS 6% 6L9°919 20T 71601 900°76S £8°€99 %S'C 685°6L6°S LET'8Y1 20t
88'8 0r°¢s vy'8 8S°L €78°01 091°L0S €20T 86LV8 8ES EES 1LEY6S %ty 195°20S‘y 758861 €70
SY'11 6¥'C9 176 I8 79T0F 86£°16€ (4414 006°1L PrS L8y 0L0°€SS %T'Y 90LT6V Y 915061 (4414
L6LT €1°€6 8L°CI Tl 81¥°9¢ €L9°10€ 120¢T 80T‘8S 9LO'VCTY 8L0E8Y %00 1€8°0CtS - 120¢C
8S'L 89°0S 898 9L 8v1°9¢ LEO99L 020T [4455 20! LO¥*899 SSY19L %0°C $S8°€08°S 1€8°911 020T
1¢°S 81°0¢ 919 €r’s ¥.8°98 €T6TLE T 610¢C L6T1¥C LLO'TISTT LOS THE T %S’S 91TT8T’L S00°Cor 610C
'y 86°0¢ £€8°¢ 8Y'¢ LYLYET 08LvTr'e 810C LOS'SSH 011789 STO°SSO'Y %6°C 6LS 61171 610°S1Y 810C
Ic¢e 9T'8C 98°C sTT 80L°0€€ €9L°786 Y L10T 1¥9°99¢ Y0¥°S6S°S 0LETTI'L %¢E'C S9T°€10°91 TET9LE L10T
ok 0L'8T ST'e 98°C 8vsIze " 910C 0L0°09S €L9°80T°S LIT'YT9°S %V'C 969°SL091 616°88¢€ 910¢C
ok 98'8¢C $ vTT $ €IT $ 79TTLT ok S10T ¥81°18S yTTT8Y L PPSTLS L %1 88IILLOT $ SL99TC S10T

JMIA 193udssed LdN JIIIAl GNUIAIY IA 19d  SINOF INUIAIY  SIIA] JoSudsseg JedX [edsi] (LdN) sdrL SIMAI SIIIAI urdaIe asuadxy ANUIAIY a8y ABIX [BISI]

Jd dsuadxy  aod asuadxy aod suadxy asuadxy JPIYIA [BNUUY [enuuy J3udssed ANUIARY JIIYIA ANUIARY SuneradQ

suneradQ sunesdQ sunpexddQ superddQ payuIun [enuuy [enuuy

»x0su0dsay puewdq »x9suodsay] puewa(q

SIBI X [BISI U, Ise|
SAINSBIJA] }S0)) PUE INUIANY SunerddQ
JOLISI(] JISURBL], SSBJA] BIIY WI[BS



CHERRIOTS

a

CHERRIOTS
LOCAL

CHERRIOTS
REGIONAL

A

CHERRIOTS
LIFT

A

CHERRIOTS
SHOP AND RIDE

A



Disclosure and Comments Required
by State Minimum Standards

74



<afim

GROVE, MUELLER & SWANK
redw

Advisors & CPAs

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
REQUIRED BY OREGON STATE REGULATIONS

Board of Directors
Salem Area Mass Transit District
Salem, Oregon

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the basic financial statements of
Salem Area Mass Transit District (the District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and have
issued our report thereon dated December 31, 2024.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in
Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits
of Oregon Municipal Corporations, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion.

We performed procedures to the extent we considered necessary to address the required comments
and disclosures which included, but were not limited to the following:

] Deposit of public funds with financial institutions (ORS Chapter 295).

= Budgets legally required (ORS Chapter 294).

. Insurance and fidelity bonds in force or required by law.

. Programs funded from outside sources.

] Authorized investment of surplus funds (ORS Chapter 294).

] Public contracts and purchasing (ORS Chapters 279A, 279B, 279C).

. Accountability for collecting or receiving money by elected officials - no money was

collected or received by elected officials

In connection with our testing nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe the District was
not in substantial compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants,
including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules
162-10-000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal
Corporations.
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Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal
control over financial reporting to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Restriction on Use

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, management of
the District, and the Oregon Secretary of State and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these parties.

g

Ryan T. Pasquarella, Principal
For REDW LLC

Salem, Oregon

December 31, 2024
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